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Mothercare Australia Limited and Controlled Entitie s

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to presenty#as's Financial Report.
The Board of Mothercare Australia announced an-#dtefoss for the full year of $21.3m.

In summary:
. Total revenue from continuing operations incredsed 79% to $65.7m following the acquisition ancegriation of Babies
Galore and Baby on a Budget and the continued rotibothercare stores.

. EBITDA loss of $19.6m including non-recurring iteofs$6.4m.
. Depreciation and amortisation of $2.4m.

. Underlying loss before tax of $15.5m.

. Basic EPS of (11.10) cents.

. The Group had net cash of $3.1m at the end of 20lyi. Net cash inflow following the Capital Raisirsgeixpected to be
$3.9m.

Items beyond normal trading, which contributedhte loss were:
. Restructuring and redundancy costs of $1.2m.

. An unrealised foreign exchange loss of $2m.
. A $1.5m stock write-down.

. A fixed asset write down of $1.7m associated withres closures and information technology assesingriout of the
integration process.

. Transaction costs and duties of $0.8m.

. Kids Central intangibles write-off of $0.7m as thielKCentral brand was replaced by Mothercare and iBltle majority of
locations.

Operational highlights

While the company is making progress towards adahgeits objective of becoming a unique parentingl draby retailer in
Australia, the following factors adversely impacfeli year results:

Lower revenue versus forecast

. The Australian retail market remained difficultterms of weak consumer demand and consequently-peased competition
escalated. As indicated in our interim results @bieiary, the sales performance of the group waswbekpected levels.
Market conditions became progressively more chgitenin the second half of the year and the rampfugales in the new
Mothercare branded stores was lower than antiadpdtes noteworthy, however, that the comparatedes of the Early
Learning Centre and remaining Kids Central storghérntoy and gift segment showed 4.7 % growth.

Clearance activity and store conversion costs

. The planned clearance activity combined with opegatosts associated with the rapid conversion namogand store
closures impacted the company gross margin suletgntis well as store operating costs for thery@ae tough retail
environment led to greater discounting on legaogksfollowing the acquisitions of Babies Galore &aby on a Budget as
the company paved the way for Mothercare brandedhmadise.

Since March of this year over 10,0000f retail space has been converted to Motherdaressand four unprofitable Babies
Galore stores were closed.

Sales mix
. The gross margin was also adversely affected binthial lower level of sales of proprietary bramderoducts.

Post merger integration and organisational structue
. Integration costs associated with the merger afetsusinesses and the need to initially retainopeed for an extended
period involved significant costs.

Review of the achievements in the full year

Mothercare has invested in progressing towardsesily its strategic objective of becoming a matkatler in its sector through
the following initiatives:

. The acquisition of Babies Galore (21/09/2010) arel shbsequent conversion of stores to MothercaressdSW and
Queensland. The conversion process was completé@ imonths rather than the originally expected Ihtims, bringing
forward the required capital expenditure to 20112financial year.
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. The acquisition of Baby On A Budget (01/10/2010). Thaversion of its two largest stores to Motheréareomplete, with
the remaining four stores to be converted immiryentl

. The conversion of key Kids Central locations to Mwtiare, including the flagship Castle Hill locatiorSydney.

. The enhancement of the underlying gross marginsadkey product categories, giving the group a caitheadvantage in
its retail segment.

. The opening of 4 new Mothercare branded stores\3dtoria and 1 in Queensland.

. The introduction of Mothercare plc, the Myer Fankigldings and Allegro Private Equity as major shatders.
. The divestment of the Beanie Kids and Giftware whale business.

. The transitioning of the group’s principal bankimdationship to the ANZ.

. The reconstitution of the Board to add retail arelMothercare international roll-out experience.

Outlook and Capital Raising

The events of the past year have adversely affebtedroup cash flow and available cash resoukbgde the retail environment
remained difficult in July and August 2011 the gwois committed to continuing to grow the presen€et® two brands,
Mothercare and the Early Learning Centre. In additfunding support from Mothercare plc and theeMizamily Holding, the
Board resolved to complete a capital raising of apipnately $7.6m by way of a rights issue. The pexsps was lodged on
September % 2011 and the offer closed on Monday September. 28ith subscriptions and underwriting, the $7.6Meative
was achieved.

Capital raised will enable the company to immedyatel

. Provide the group with additional necessary worldapgital.

. Open at least six new stores — including two newthdcare fashion centric mall stores in the nextobiths.
. Continue with the national marketing campaign.

. Accelerate its online business modev.mothercare.com.aandwww.elctoys.com.au

. Further rationalise its expense structure.

In the 2012 financial year, the group is estimatiédgnue to increase above $80m as it benefits frmmstore openings, and a full
year's trading on the acquired portfolio under Methercare brand. In this coming financial yeagréhwill not be a material

clearance impact on gross profit and sales of petay product is expected to improve with the exjmd marketing effort. In

addition, the company has reduced its head offisscby approximately 10% as a result of the irtiign process. Further, the
growth in sales, the improved gross margin fromroupd sales and enhanced buying arrangements,handost efficiencies

achieved are expected to contribute to a markedovgpnent in performance over the next 12 months.

The Board wishes to reiterate that it appreciatesctiallenging task lying ahead for the company #med difficult economic
climate in which it is operating.

Mothercare Australia and its major shareholdersaiensommitted to achieving its goal to become aasnable and profitable
market leader as a mother, baby and kids retail&ustralia and New Zealand.

The Board of Directors of Mothercare Australia wisie acknowledge the support of its staff, supplibankers and in particular,
Mothercare plc and Myer Family Holdings.

R

Robert Gavshon
Chairman

30 September 2011
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your directors submit their report on the consdhdaentity (‘the Group’) consisting of Mothercaraidralia Limited and the
entities it controlled at the end of, or duringe tfear ended 30 June 2011.

DIRECTORS

The names of the directors of Mothercare Austrhimited (‘the Company’) in office during the yeardanntil the date of this
report unless otherwise stated are:

Robert Gavshon (Non -Executive Chairman)
Robert Gavshon was appointed to the Board on 1 Demed@i0. Robert is also a member of the Audit Conemitt

Robert Gavshon came from South Africa 33 years ag@re he was a partner in one of that country'ditegalaw firms. In
Sydney, he began his career as Group General Caams®irector of Corporate Affairs for a multi-nated corporation.
Subsequently, Robert became a significant sharehoidend served as a director of a number of conggaincluding Deputy
Chairman of Barbeques Galore, a NASDAQ listed companty its sale to a leading Australian private iggroup. He also
served as a non-executive Director and a found&etiel Sport, the largest sporting goods retailéustralia and New Zealand
and Chairman of Oporto and Think: Education, uriiit sales. He is currently Chairman of SOLA Sp@pen Colleges
Australia, Viteknologies and Mothercare Australias a director of a number of other investee camgs.

Robert has extensive community involvement, occupigading positions in Australian not-for-profitgamnisations
Directorship of public listed companies for the ptsee years: Nil

Brent Dennison (Managing Director)

Brent Dennison was appointed to the Board on 21 2008. Brent returned to Australia after workingtle European private
equity industry for 6 years. Immediately prior &turning, Brent executed and managed a successftarmtbuild investment in
Italy in conjunction with the Dutch fund, Favonidentures. Before working with Favonius, Brent wasraador with Citigroup in
NY evaluating small to medium sized financial seeg investment opportunities of strategic intetesthe bank. Prior to
Citigroup, Brent led two entrepreneurial venturegJkxbased software business that was sold to a GeERP player, and the
launch of Turkey’s first management consulting fisgcin the mid-1990s. Before embarking on his gméneeurial pursuits, Brent
was a strategy consultant with the Boston Consuf@iraup in Melbourne and New York.

Directorship of public listed companies for the pésee years: Nil

Ross Bartlett (Executive Director)

Ross Bartlett was appointed to the Board 8iSéptember 2009 at the time of the merged Skanssi®entral entity. Ross is also
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Ross has3fvgears experience in retail, marketing, brandagament and product
development. Over that period, Ross held many semanagement roles at Coles Myer including Generahdgar of
Merchandising & Marketing for Kmart Australasia. Has experience in Strategic Planning and Buying-@naanagement
including the development of exciting new Brands anitjue products, long term development of retaihfats and their market
positioning.

Directorship of public listed companies for the ptsee years: Nil

Jerry Cull (Non-Executive Director)
Jerry Cull was appointed to the Board on 30 Septe@®&0. Jerry has been appointed to the Remuner@bamittee.

Jerry is currently the Group International Directfr Mothercare plc. He has over 30 years’ expegeworking within the
Mothercare Group. Jerry was previously within tH€ Mothercare business before moving to the intéonat division. Since that
time, he has led the growth of Mothercare inteoratlly to a 950 store portfolio in 54 countriesiwitnnual retail sales in excess
of $1 billion (AUD).

Directorship of public listed companies for the ptsee years: Nil
Mike Lewis (Non-Executive Director)
Mike Lewis was appointed to the Board on 30 Septer2d&0.

Mike Lewis established OshKosh B’Gosh in AustralialP87. He was also responsible for the developwie@shKosh's Asia /
Pacific business based in HKG, and the set uptbéia sourcing office servicing the Asia/Pacific nkets. Post the success of the
Asia initiative, Mike was appointed from 1996 urgD0O to drive the growth of the OshKosh branchie YK and Europe. Upon
his return to Australia, Mike negotiated the Aukairm/ NZ rights for the Early Learning Centre (EL@nd developed the ELC
business in conjunction with the Kids Central retaihcept. In 2007, Mike negotiated the Mothercaghts for Australia. Mike
then joined with Headline Group (now Mothercare thaig) to undertake the Mothercare launch andtmll

Mike has a BEc degree from Sydney University aralgsialified accountant.
Directorship of public listed companies for the pésee years: Nil
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DIRECTORS (continued)

David Shelmerdine (Non- Executive Director)
David Shelmerdine was appointed to the Board on @@iber 2010. David has also been appointed tAdldé Committee.

Mr Shelmerdine is a director of The Gold Standasdrfelation and past Deputy Chairman of The Myer Ra@idmpany Holdings
Pty Ltd, a member of its investment committee, neemation and nominations committee and Chairmahefudit and
Governance Committee.

In addition, David is a founding director and Dgpcihairman of ClimateWorks Australia, and is Convesfathe Sustainability
and the Environment Funding Program for the Sidviggr Fund and The Myer Foundation. He has beeolwed in several
significant philanthropic initiatives with the Fodation and the Fund over the past ten years.

He is Managing Director of Laradoc Pty Ltd, a ptelg owned agribusiness company with interesthéenpastoral, livestock and
viticulture sectors. David has a Graduate DiploamAgriculture from Adelaide University Roseworthy K&ge in South Australia
and has been directly involved in the managemethistnategic direction of a number of privately odragribusiness companies

Directorship of public listed companies for the pésee years: Nil

Chester Moynihan (Non-Executive Director)
Chester Moynihan was appointed to the Board dhI86vember 2010. Chester has also been appointedn@itabf the Audit
Committee.

Chester co-founded Quay Capital (predecessor to rhllEgnds) in 2004 and is currently a co partner.s@rénas over 19 years of
experience in private equity investing, corporateisory and executive management.

Chester is a Chartered Accountant and has the folpwaidditional qualifications, Investment Managem@attificate and
advanced Insolvency law and practice.

Directorship of public listed companies for the ptsee years: Nil

Gordon Elkington (Executive Chairman)
Gordon Elkington was appointed to the Board on 3tber 2004 and resigned on 30 November 2010.

Gordon has over 30 years’ experience in the reta manufacturing sectors. From 1999 to 2003 Gomdas the Managing
Director of Sabco Limited. From 1994 to 1999 heswlze Managing Director of Willow Sales Managemétd.was previously a
director of Davis Plastics, prior to its acquisitiby the Willow Group. Gordon was also the Chairméthe Audit Committee
until his resignation in November of last year.

Directorship of public listed companies for the pésee years: Nil

George Choo (Executive Director & Chief Financial Offér)
George Choo resigned from the Board and as Compamgt&gcon 30 November 2010.

George holds qualifications in Business Studies rirgjoin Accounting and Graduate-Diploma in Electmbata Processing
(EDP).

Directorship of public listed companies for the pésee years: Nil

COMPANY SECRETARY

lan Gordon

lan Gordon was appointed Company Secretary on 9b@ct@007, and resigned on 29 June 2011. lan has déellow of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia 8id®77, and has practised as a Chartered Account&ytiney since 1974 as a
partner in McBurney & Partners. He has had previyerience acting as Company Secretary for NeveSfaingwater Limited
from its initial ASX listing until taken over by CaeCola Amatil Limited, and is responsible in his @acting practice for
corporate secretarial services for a diverse rafigalisted companies.

George Choo
George Choo, Executive Director & Chief Financial i€Hf, was appointed as an additional Company Segreta 22 August
2008 and resigned from both positions on 30 Noverab#&0.

Robert de Lorenzo

Robert de Lorenzo is currently the CFO for Mothercawstralia and was appointed Company Secretary 8edember 2010.

Robert is a CPA and his qualifications include a Bimhef Business and a MBA. Robert has a number ofsye&financial and

commercial experience across international andlljodiated companies, including the most recentesoht Westpac Banking
Corporation, and Hutchison Telecommunications.
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Interests in the shares and options of the Compargnd related bodies corporate
As at the date of this report, the interests ofdinectors in the shares and options of the Compaarg:

Ordinary Options over
shares ordinary
fully paid shares
Mike Lewis 5,373,748 -
Brent Dennison 11,779,374 -

CORPORATE STRUCTURE
Mothercare Australia Limited (ACN 060 199 082) is@npany limited by shares that is incorporated dmmhiciled in Australia.
Mothercare Australia Limited has prepared constdiddinancial statements incorporating the entitieg it controlled during the
financial year. All subsidiaries are 100% owned eochiciled in Australia except where indicated.

Mothercare Australia Limited (formerly Headline Group Limited)

Skansen Pty Limited

Baby on a Budget Pty Limited

A.C.N. 000 950 649 Pty Limitedformerly Reko Pty Limited)

DoDo Holdings Pty Limited

BK World Online Pty Limited

Skansen Giftware (UK) Limited (domiciled in the United Kingdom)

Skansen KCG Pty Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Level 1

Building 2A/220

The Entertainment Quarter

122 Lang Road

Moore Park NSW 2021

NATURE OF OPERATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities during the year within tBeoup was the sale of educational toys, parerdimd) children’s products and
mother and child fashion.

The Group is focused on marketing and retailinguesiee brands to the Australian parenting and chilts market segment. The
Group is continuing an exciting growth phase wité toll-out of Mothercare in Australia and New Zeal.

DIVIDENDS

No dividends have been declared or paid duringnmesthe end of the financial year.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

For the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group incarreet loss before tax of $21.89 million and acoehprehensive loss after tax
of $20.29 million. This is not comparable to the Bfhe 2010 net loss before tax of $4.09 millionaose of the acquisition of
Babies on a Budget and Babies Galore which has irtsmme one-off expenses for the year ended 302tk

The major factors impacting the result included:

¢ Australian retail market conditions remained difficin terms of weak consumer demand and conselyuprice-based
completion escalated.

¢ Restructuring costs including redundancies of $1.2m.
¢ An unrealised foreign exchange loss of $2m.
e Afair value $1.5m stock write down of acquired BabGalore Stock.

e A fixed asset write down of $1.7m associated witbres closures and information technology assetsingriout of the
integration process.

* Transaction costs and duties of $0.8m.

* Kids Central intangibles write off of $0.7m as thel& Central Brand was replaced by Mothercare and BELiié majority of
locations.

¢ Depreciation and amortisation of $2.4m.
SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

The figures in the table are not all sourced framited accounts as they reflect a combination dfted and internal management
information. Accordingly the figures should only bged as a guide to trends to business performance.

6-Month
Year *
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Revenues from ordinary activities ($'000) 65,657 081, 11,588 5,966 21,569
Return on sales (EBITDA)/Revenue (29.9)% (10.0)% 5e4. (17.4)% (8.7)%
NTA (cents per share) 3.1 4.5 11.7 13.0 13.9
Basic EPS (cents per share) attributable to
members (11.09) 2.7) (1.3) (0.9) (2.3)
Dividends paid during the year (cents per share) - - - - 15
Closing share price (cents per share) 20.5 28.0 12.0 155 15.0
Shares on issue ('000) 212,921 119,690 119,690 6909, 120,046

* In 2008 reporting year end moved to 30 June.rRa@008 reporting year end was 31 December.

COMPANY PERFORMANCE

The above table shows the performance of the Govepthe last five periods.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

Capital Structure

93.2m new shares were issued in 2011 (2010:nil)shlres were issued under the Dividend Reinvest®iamt following the
suspension of the plan on 28 March 2006. The marams suspended until further notice.

Cash from Operations

Net cash flows used in operating activities for yiear ended 30 June 2011 was ($16.5) million aspeoed to ($3.97) million for
the year ended 30 June 2010.

Liquidity and Funding
The Group has funding facilities as at 30 June 2&s14hown in note 9 to the financial statements.

Cash on hand as at 30 June 2011 was $3 million (283million).
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

On 31 August 2010, Mothercare Australia announé¢edsale of Skansen KCG's Giftware business (i.e. iBagids) to Zoo
SkyMedia Pty Ltd. As a result of Mothercare Aukérdeing clearly focused on the roll out of its tlercare and ELC retail
concepts, the Giftware business no longer formed p& Mothercare Australia's core business. Sinagoler 2009 when
Mothercare Australia acquired a controlling intéresKids Central, Mothercare Australia's emphass been establishing the
platform to take Mothercare in Australia to a natibfootprint. The capital previously employed lvistdivision will be utilised to
accelerate the national footprint.

On 1 October 2010, Mothercare Australia acquire@®a®f the issued capital of Western Australian raptind baby chain called
"Baby on a Budget". In addition, effective 21 SeptemB010, Mothercare Australia acquired selectedniess assets and
liabilities of the New South Wales and Queenslaaseld mother and baby chain called "Babies Galoregh Bmse acquisitions
have progressed the rollout of the Mothercare natitotprint.

On 23 December 2010 the company changed it's nameHeadline Group Limited to Mothercare Australimited.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS

In the opinion of the Directors, it would prejudite interests of the Group to include addition&bimation, except as reported in
this Directors report and the annual report, whiadhted to likely developments in the operationthefconsolidated entity and the
expected results of those operations in finan@ailopls subsequent to 30 June 2011.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE

Mothercare Australia announced in conjunction wlith recent release of the Appendix 4E, a rightseig®nsisting of one
Mandatorily Converting Note for every five sharetdhé is priced at $0.18 per security yieldingdrest of 11.45% per annum (in
respect of interest payments that are not franke8y6 per annum (in respect of interest paymerm$udly franked from available
profits). The New Mandatorily Converting Notes issuoy the Company will be secured by a second rarfkied and floating
charge over all of the Company’s assets.

The proceeds of the offer will be used to:
. enable the Company to take advantage of increasesllstation opportunities where appropriate;

. expand the Company’s marketing investment in crgadlothercare's brand awareness; and
. provide additional working capital for the Company.

The offer has closed and raised $7.6M (excludirgy dbsts associated with the raising). This corafdrigp to $4.6M in new
subscription monies with the balance contributedh®yunderwriters. Part of the proceeds generatiéthevapplied to capitalising
loans to Mothercare plc and Myer Family Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE

The Group complies with all environmental regulatio

SHARE OPTIONS AND SHAREHOLDINGS

During the year, no options were granted to exeestor employees.
Refer to note 26 for shareholdings and option hgssliof directors and key management personnel.

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

During or since the financial year, the Group hail gpremiums in respect of a contract insuringoélthe directors and certain
officers of Mothercare Australia Limited againsstoincurred in defending proceedings for conduadlving:

(@) awilful breach of duty; or
(b) a contravention of sections 182 or 183 of the Capons Act 2001, as permitted by section 199B ofGloeporations Act
2001.

The Group is bound by a confidentiality clauseténimsurance policy not to disclose the insuramrgract premiums.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)
This report outlines the remuneration arrangemianpéace for directors and executives of the Compary the Group.
A) PRINCIPLES USED TO DETERMINE THE NATURE AND AMOUNT OF REMUNERA TION

Remuneration Philosophy

The performance of the Group depends upon thetyuafliits directors and executives. To prosper, @reup must attract,
motivate and retain highly skilled directors aneé@xives.

To this end, the Group embodies the following gptes in its remuneration framework:

. Provide competitive rewards to attract high calixecutives;
. Establish appropriate performance hurdles in i@tatid variable executive remuneration; and
. A portion of executive remuneration “at risk” degent upon meeting pre-determined performance beadtsm

Responsibility

The Board is responsible for determining and revigngompensation arrangements for the directorsmigueaging director and
the executive team. The Board assesses the amtm@ss of the nature and amount of emolumentschf afficers on a periodic
basis by reference to relevant employment marketliions with the overall objective of ensuring rimaxm stakeholder benefit
from the retention of a high quality Board and exseuteam.

To assist in achieving these objectives, the Baaid lthe nature and amount of executive directansl officers’ emoluments to
the Company’s financial performance.

Remuneration Structure

In accordance with best practice corporate govemarhe structure of non-executive director andicsemanagement
remuneration is separate and distinct.

Non-Executive Director Remuneration

Objective
The Board seeks to set aggregate remuneratioresebwhich provides the Group with the ability ttract and retain directors of
a high calibre, whilst incurring a cost which iseptable to shareholders.

Structure

The constitution of the Company and the ASX ListiRgles specify that the aggregate of non-executivecttirs shall be
determined from time to time by a general meetig.amount not exceeding the amount determinedeis thivided between the
directors as agreed. The latest determination wieaAnnual General Meeting held on 29 July 2002mvshareholders approved
an aggregate remuneration of $250,000 per year.

The amount of aggregate remuneration sought tqppeoged by shareholders and the manner in whighapportioned amongst
directors is reviewed annually. The Board considetseen needed, advice from external consultantsedlsas fees paid to non-
executive directors of comparable companies wheleraking the annual review process.

This review process does not necessarily mean iadegase is sought from the next annual generatinge Each director receives
a fee for being a director of the Company. No addél fee is paid for sitting on a board committdewever a director may, at
the request from the Board, undertake additionabeltimg work, which will be invoiced in addition teormal director’s fees.

Non-executive directors do not receive performaetated remuneration.

Executive Director Remuneration

Objective

The Group aims to reward executives with a level anix of remuneration commensurate with their posiand responsibilities

within the Group and so as to:

. Reward executives for the Group, business unit adividual performance against targets set by raferdo appropriate
benchmarks;

. Align the interests of executives with those ofrehalders;

. Link reward with the strategic goals and perfornsotthe Company; and

. Ensure total remuneration is competitive by maskahdards.

Structure

Remuneration consists of the two key elements:
. Fixed remuneration; and

. Variable remuneration.

The proportion of fixed and variable remuneratisestablished by the Board.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) (continued)

Fixed Remuneration

Objective
The level of fixed remuneration is set so as tovig® a base level of remuneration which is appeiprio the position and is
competitive in the market.

Fixed remuneration is reviewed annually by the Boamdl the process involves a review of business amit individual
performance and relevant competitive remuneratiché market.

Structure

Key management personnel are given the opporttmitgceive their fixed remuneration in a varietyfains including cash, car
allowance and fringe benefits such as a motor \ehitis intended that the manner of payment chas#l be optimal for the
recipient without undue cost for the Company.

Variable Remuneration

Objective

The objective of the variable remuneration is tk lthe achievements of the Group’s operationaletargvith the remuneration
received by the executives charged with meetingehargets. The main target is the achievemerhebtisiness unit’s profit
budget. The total potential variable remuneratiailable is set so as to provide sufficient incemtto the key management
personnel to achieve the operational targets acldl that the cost to the Group is reasonable iritcemstances.

Details of the nature and amount of each elemettteemolument of each director of the Group aruth edi the key management
personnel of the Group and the consolidated eatéyas follows:

B) DETAILS OF REMUNERATION
Details of directors and other key management pexsio

(i) Directors

G Elkington Executive Chairman — (resigned 30 Noven?2010)

B Dennison Managing Director

G Choo Executive Director / CFO (resigned 30 Noven2iod 0

R Bartlett Non-Executive Director

R.Gavshon Non-executive Chairman — (appointed 1 mbee2010)
M.Lewis Executive Director — (appointed 30 Septen2010)

J Cull Non-executive Director — (appointed 30 Seiter 2010)
D Shelmerdine Non-executive Director — (appoir@@dNovember 2010)
C Moynihan Non-executive Director - (appointed 3@vBmber 2010)

(ii) Other key management personnel
I. Gordon Company Secretary - (resigned 29 201dd)

R. de Lorenzo Company Secretary / CFO - (appoihtedcember 2010).

The terms “director” and “officer” have been trehi@s mutually exclusive for the purposes of thicldisure. The elements of
emoluments have been determined on the basis ob#tdo the Group; and

Key management personnel are those directly acablenaind responsible for the operational manageamahstrategic direction
of the Group. In the directors’ view, other serpersonnel do not fall into the definition above.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) (continued)

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, tieg knanagement personnel of the Group (as defindd\BB 124 Related Party

Disclosure) and specified executives are set othterfollowing table.

Short term Post Non
Employment Monetary
Salary & Cash Car Termination Super- Motor Total
fees bonus  Allowan Benefits annuation Vehicle
Directors $ $ ce $ $ $
$
G Elkington (resigned Nov 2010)
2011 167,368 - 14,583 175,000 15,063 - 372,p14
2010 314,994 - 35,000 - 31,499 - 381,493
B Dennison
2011 337,179 50,000 - - 34,846 - 422,025
2010 262,500 - - - 23,625 - 286,125
G Choo (resigned Nov 2010)
2011 87,616 - 7,000 80,000 3,510 - 178,126
2010 120,000 - 8,509 - 11,566 15,491 155,566
R Bartlett
2011 76,250 - - - - - 76,250
2010 157,500 - - - - - 157,500
Mike Lewis (appointed Sept 2010)
2011 196,431 - - 137,500 4,725 - 338,656
Jerry Cull (appointed Sept 2010)
2011 - - - - - - -
Robert Gavshon (appointed Nov
2010)
2011 45,538 - - - 4,098 - 49,63p
Chester Moynihan (appointed Nov
2010)
2011 - - - - - - -
David Shelmerdine (appointed Nov
2010)
2011 - - - - - - -
Sub-totals - Directors 2011 910,382 50,000 21,583 392,500 62,242 - 1,436,707
2010 854,994 - 43,509 - 66,690 15,491 980,684
Other key management personnel
| Gordon *
R De Lorenzo CFO ( appointed 1
December 2010 201,461 - 13,103 - 27,393 - 241,957
Grand Totals 2011 1,1843 50,000 34,686 392,500 89,635 - 1,678,664
2010 854,994 - 43,509 - 66,690 15,491 980,684
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Mothercare Australia Limited and Controlled Entitie s

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED) (continued)

*Mr. | Gordon, Company Secretary, is a partner ofBdmey & Partners, provided company secretarialisesvto Mothercare
Australia Limited. The agreement between Motherdarstralia Limited and McBurney & Partners is basachormal commercial
terms. In 2011, a total of $72,359 (2010: $23,9633 received by McBurney & Partners.

. No share based payments were made during the ydaha previous reporting period.

. Percentage of remuneration related to performandeshare options during the year is Nil.

C) EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS

Mr Brent Dennison, Managing Director

- Duration of contract is three (3) years commendindarch 2009.

- Base salary excluding superannuation is $350,00@maum and it is to be reviewed by the Board onramual basis.
In October 2010, Mr Dennison’s base salary exclgdmperannuation was increased to $350,000 penannu

- The contract may be terminated by either party towiging 90 days notice. Mr Dennison is entitledctimpensation
for the unexpired months and the compensation bleatlo greater than $250,000.

- Remuneration is not linked to any performance indica

- The discretionary bonus for Brent Dennison grante@eptember 2010 and paid in relation to the cotiopleof the
Skansen business sale, and the closing of the twthévicare business-related acquisitions and assdceapital
raisings. The amount was determined by the remtinar&ommittee at that time.

Mr Robert Gavshon, Chairman
- Duration of contract aligned to holding positionGtzairman
- Base salary excluding superannuation is $80,00@meum and it is to be reviewed by the Board on aalrbasis.
- Long term incentive scheme to be approved by sloddels at AGM. In the event the incentive schemends
approved, an additional $80,000 to be paid.
- Remuneration is not linked to any performance irdica

D) OPTIONS GRANTED AS PART OF REMUNERATION
There were no options granted for the year endetl@ 2011 (2010: nil).

E) ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Whilst remuneration for key management personnebtsdirectly linked to the Group’s performancergmanel may be rewarded
by way of year end bonuses or/and increases inreration. Details of the Group’s performance dutting last five years are
tabled below.

6-Month
Year
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Revenues from ordinary activities ($'000) 65,657 081, 11,588 5,966 21,569
NTA (cents per share) 3.1 4.5 11.7 13.0 13.9
Basic EPS (cents per share) attributable to
members (11.09) 2.7) (1.3) (0.9) (2.3)
Dividends paid during the year (cents per share) - - - - 1.5
Closing share price (cents per share) 20.5 28.0 12.0 155 15.0
Shares on issue ('000) 212,921 119,690 119,690 6909, 120,046
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Mothercare Australia Limited and Controlled Entitie s
DIRECTORS’' REPORT
DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS

During the year, six directors' meetings and onditasommittee meeting was held. The number of mgstat which directors
were in attendance is as follows:

Meeting of Directors Audit Committee
No. held while in Meetings No. held while in  Meetings

office attended office attended
G Elkington 3 3 - -
B Dennison 6 6 - -
R Bartlett 6 6 - -
G Choo 3 3 - -
J.Cull 5 4 - -
M.Lewis 5 5 - -
R. Gavshon 3 3 1 1
C.Moynihan 3 3 1 1
D.Shelmerdine 3 3 1 1

As at the date of this report, the Company has atitATommittee. The members of the Audit Committee MreC Moynihan
(Chairman), Mr R Gavshon, and Mr D Shelmerdine.

ROUNDING

The amounts contained in this report and in tharfaial statements have been rounded to the nekr@0 (where rounding is
applicable) under the option available to the Camypander ASIC Class Order 98/0100. The Company isnéitye¢o which the
Class Order applies.

AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

The auditor’s independence declaration for the yeamted 30 June 2011 has been received and cambe ém page 18f this
report.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES
Non-audit services were provided by the entity’ditar PKF. The directors are satisfied that thevigion of non-audit services is
compatible with the general standard of indepeneléoicauditors imposed by the Corporations Act. maiure and scope of each

type of non-audit service provided means that auditdependence was not compromised. PKF receivetleodue to receive the
following amounts for the provision of non-auditsees.

. other assurance services provided $13,500 (2010893)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In recognising the need for the highest standafd®iporate behaviour and accountability, the doexcof Mothercare Australia
Limited support and have adhered to the principliesorporate governance. The Company’s corporatergawce statement is
detailed in the financial report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the dinec

Robert Gavshon
Chairman

30 September 2011
Sydney
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Chartered Accountants
& Business Advisers

Lead auditor’s independence declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001

To: The Directors
Mothercare Australia Limited and the entitiesitc  ontrolled during the year

| declare to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the financial year ended 30 June 2011
there have been:

. no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit, and

. no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

 Bee

John Bresolin
Partner

b

PKF
Sydney
30 September 2011

Tel: 61 2 9251 4100 | Fax: 61 2 9240 9821 | www.pkf.com.au

PKF | ABN 83 236 985 726

Level 10, 1 Margaret Street | Sydney | New South Wales 2000 | Australia
DX 10173 | Sydney Stock Exchange | New South Wales

The PKF East Coast Practice is a member of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent member firms. The PKF East Coast Practice is also a member
of the PKF Australia Limited national network of legally independent firms each trading as PKF. PKF East Coast Practice has offices in NSW, Victoria and Brisbane. PKF
East Coast Practice does not accept responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
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Mothercare Australia Limited and Controlled Entitie s

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Board of Directors (‘the Board’) of Mothercare stnalia Limited (‘the Company’) are responsible the corporate
governance practices of the consolidated entitythicare Australia Limited and its controlled destare referred to as ‘the
Group’. The Board guides and monitors the businedsa#fairs of the Company on behalf of the sharetrsldy whom they
are elected and to whom they are accountable.

The Board supports the core principles developedhbyAustralian Securities Exchange (“ASX”) Corpor&@evernance
Council (“the Council”) as a basis for enhancing tnedibility and transparency of our capital markétke structures,
policies and procedures already in place have kbegrloped and implemented by the Board and managesen many
years to ensure the Company continues to operatgose principles.

The Board believes that the Group’s Corporate Govemaolicies should be tailored to account fordize and structure of
the Group, risks associated with the Group’s opmmatand the Group’s inherent strengths and weaksesThe ASX
concurs with this view and allows companies to axpldeviations from the ASX Corporate Governance Citsn
recommendations.

Areas where the Group has deviated from the Cosn@tommendations are discussed below, but the Budieves the
areas of non-conformance do not impact on the Gsoapility to operate with the highest standardsGafrporate
Governance.

Principle 1: Lay solid foundations for management ad oversight

Recommendation 1.1: Establish the functions resertedhe Board and those delegated to senior execstiaed disclose
those functions.

The Board is responsible to shareholders for thau@sooverall corporate governance practices, anésponsible for the
direction and oversight of the Group’s businessebahalf of the shareholders.

The Board'’s responsibilities include:

. reviewing and determining the Group’s strategiection and operational policies;

. establishing goals for management and monitoriegatthievement of these goals;

. reviewing and approving the Group’s Business Plan;

. appointing and remunerating the Managing Director;

. approving all significant business transactionsuding acquisitions, divestments and property dewelents;
. monitoring business risk exposures and risk managesystems;

. approving and monitoring financial and other exéneporting;

. approving changes to the Group’s capital structure;

. reporting to shareholders; and

. promoting ethical conduct.

The Board delegates responsibility for the formolatf strategy and administration of day-to-dayihess to the Managing
Director and Chief Financial Officer who comprise tBompany’s senior management group.

The senior management group is responsible for:

. ensuring business development and other activitiesconducted in accordance with the Group’s ovéradiness
strategy;

. managing the Group’s property developments, bus@seand other investments to maximise returnsarebblders;

. informing the Board on a regular basis of the stafal projects and the performance of all GrougBsets;

. managing relationships with investors and analysts;

. approving capital expenditure and business traimgectvithin predetermined limits set by the Board;

. planning in accordance with the financial controldglines which govern the allocation and managéraéfinancial
resources throughout the Group;

. ensuring that appropriate financial reporting isvided to the Board on a monthly, six monthly anduai basis; and

. establishing and monitoring the Group’s risk mamaget framework to ensure that policies, guideliand controls
are effective in reducing the Group’s operatiomal inancial exposures to an acceptable level.

Recommendation 1.2 Disclose the process for evahgathe performance of senior executives.
Senior management’s performance is assessed fgqadainst both qualitative and quantitative fastat board meetings.

There have been no departures from Principle Induhe year ended 30 June 2011.
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Mothercare Australia Limited and Controlled Entitie s

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Principle 2: Structure the board to add value

The Board comprises the Non-Executive Chairman, MagaBirector and five Non-Executive Directors. Thize and
composition of the Board is formulated to provideampropriate range of experience, skills, knowledgée perspective to
enable it to appoint, guide and supervise a higimdgtrd of management for the Group’s business. nimes, skills,
experience and expertise of each Director of thezmy are set out in the Annual Report and on the @agip website.

Recommendation 2.1: A majority of the Board should inéependent directors.

Directors of Mothercare Australia are considerebeédndependent when they are independent of marageand free from
any business or other relationship that could ri@bgrinterfere with — or could reasonably be péred to materially
interfere with — the exercise of their independprmdgement. In the context of director independerfogateriality” is
considered from both the Company and individual alire perspective. The determination of materialigguires
consideration of both quantitative and qualitaiglements. An item is presumed to be quantitatiireiyaterial if it is equal
to or less than 5% of the appropriate base amdum@.Board considers an item to be material (unleseetis qualitative
evidence to the contrary) if it is equal to or geeadhan 10% of the appropriate base amount. Qiigkt factors considered
include whether a relationship is strategically aripnt, the competitive landscape, the nature efrifationship and the
contractual or other arrangements governing it @her factors that point to the ability of the db@ in question to shape
the direction of the Company’s loyalty.

In accordance with this definition of independenuene of the current directors are independenttiire by virtue of their
substantial shareholdings in Mothercare Austradialetailed in the Annual Report or by their managemele. The Board
does not comprise a majority of independent dirsctand consequently its composition does not compith
Recommendation 2.1 of the ASX Corporate GovernanceleBues. This departure arises from the size aatlire of
operations of the Group.

However, the Board has adopted the following meastoreensure that independent judgment is achienddraintained in
respect of its decision-making processes:

. Directors are entitled to seek independent pradessiadvice at the Company’s expense, subject tagpeoval of the
Board;

. Directors having a conflict of interest in relatitma particular item of business must absent tetras from the board
meeting before commencement of discussion on thie;tand

. Non-executive directors confer on a needs bastsowitmanagement in attendance.
Each director brings a range of complementarysskifid experience to the Group as indicated in tireuAl Report.

Recommendation 2.2: The Chairperson should be an ipeledent Director.

The Company’s Chairman is Mr Robert Gavshon.

Recommendation 2.3: The roles of Chairperson and Chiefecutive Officer should not be exercised by themsa
individual.

The Chairman is Mr Robert Gavshon and the Chief Exkex@fficer is Mr Brent Dennison, therefore as regdiunder best
practice, there is a separation of these two roles.

Recommendation 2.4: The Board should establish a Neation Committee.

Due to the size and structure of the Company’s Baafdpominations Committee has not been establishegqasred under
ASX Recommendation 2.4. All directors may make reoemdations to the Board regarding the membershtpeoBoard,

including proposed new appointments. However, iaflaiors must agree unanimously on any new diremp@ointments. In
addition, the Company’s Constitution provides thatath annual general meeting, one third of direcsball retire (and be
eligible for re-election).

The Board believes that these alternative procedursemore than adequate to preserve the intedrihedBoard.

Recommendation 2.5: Disclose the process for evahgthe performance of the Board, its committees aimdlividual
directors.

Due to the size and nature of the Group, the Boalié\®s that external formal evaluation is not 8eaey as performance is
continually being evaluated on an ongoing basiss Ehtherefore a departure from Recommendation 2.5.
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Mothercare Australia Limited and Controlled Entitie s

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Principle 3: Promote ethical and responsible decish making
Recommendation 3.1: Companies should establish a aafdebnduct and disclose the code.

The Board encourages the highest standards of etlinduct by all directors and employees of theuproThe Board has
adopted a Code of Conduct & Ethics that sets ouptimeiples and standards with which all Group’dasfs and employees
are expected to comply in the performance of tfespective functions. Officers and employees apeeted to:

. comply with the law;

. act honestly and with integrity;

. reduce the opportunity for situations to arise \whiesult in divided loyalties or conflicts of inést;

. use the Group’s assets responsibly and in theifitesests of the Company’s shareholders; and

. be responsible and accountable for their actions.

Senior management immediately investigates posddileres to comply with the principles of ethicahd responsible
conduct, employing the use of third party expenigere necessary. The appropriate level of dis@p)i action is applied
where departures from these principles are confirme

This Code is regularly reviewed and updated as sacg$o ensure it remains consistent with the Bsaobjectives.

Recommendation 3.2: Establish a policy concerningdiiag in company securities by directors, senior exgves and
employees, and disclose the policy or a summarthaf policy.

Dealing in Company Shares

Officers, management and employees are activelpueaged to own shares in the Company. The Boardisypd that
trading in the Company’s shares and/or options sueh shares by directors and staff should only octgircumstances
where the market is fully informed of the Grouptidties. The Board considers at each months boadting whether
trading in the Company’s shares is appropriate éncthming month taking into account the circumstangbich exist. The
policy requires that Directors discuss any intemtio trade in the Company’s shares and/or optioes swch shares with the
Chairman in circumstances where there exists a baeeision that shares and/or options over sucheshaught not to be
traded. Senior management and employees requirappmval of the Executive Chairman prior to tradiigpe Board
recognises that it is the individual responsibitfyeach Director and employee to ensure that theyply with the spirit and
letter of the insider trading laws, and that noéfion to the Board, the Chairman or the Managingdar of an intention to
trade in no way implies their approval of any ti@et®n.

Principle 4: Safeguard integrity in financial reporting

Recommendation 4.1: The Board should establish an AW@bmmittee.

The Company’s Managing Director and Chief Financitiicer report in writing to the Board that the colidated financial
statements of the Group for each half and fullftial year present a true and fair view, in all enaf respects, of the
Group’s financial condition and operational reswdtel are in accordance with relevant accountingdstals. The Audit
Committee operates throughout the year with the gminobjective to assist the Board of Directors iffilfung the Board's
responsibilities relating to the accounting, rejgrtand financial risk management practices of@neup. In fulfilling this
objective, the Audit Committee meets at least twaes each year.

The main duties and responsibilities of the AuditriBdttee include:

. review and consideration of statutory compliancétens;

. review of the annual and half-yearly financial regpp

. recommend to the Board nominations for appointmsrmxéernal auditors;

. review the scope of the audit, the level of auelitsfand the performance of the external auditors;

. liaison with external auditors, review of auditqéng and consideration of audit results; and

. evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness ofGheup’s administrative, operating and accountimgjcpes and
internal controls through active communication vagherating management and the external auditors.

Recommendation 4.2: Structure the Audit Committee battit consists only of non-executive directors,nsists of a
majority of independent directors and is chaired By independent chair, who is not chair of the boaathd has at least
three members.

Recommendation 4.3: The Audit Committee should havieranal charter.
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Mothercare Australia Limited and Controlled Entitie s

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Principle 4: Safeguard integrity in financial reporting (continued)

The members of the Audit Committee during the yearewMr Chester Moynihan (Chairman), Mr Robert Gavstamal, Mr
David Shelmerdine. As non-executive directors th@mittee complies with recommendation 4.2.

Mr G Elkington (Chairman) and Mr G Choo were both evprevious members of the audit committee and mesigluring
the year. Both were not independent and held execptisitions which was a departure from Recommenwl&ti2. This has
since changed with the appointment of the new AGdinmittee.

The Audit Committee also does not have a formalteham accordance with Recommendation 4.3.

The departures from Recommendations 4.3 arise auatof the size and nature of the Group and teegmt structure of
the Board. The Board is aware of the Corporate Gomem&rinciples and Recommendation&” @dition), and will
continue to work towards full adoption of the reenemdations in line with growth and developmentha Group in the
years ahead.

Principle 5: Make timely and balanced disclosure

Recommendation 5.1: Establish written policies and pedures designed to ensure compliance with ASX Listigje
disclosure requirements and to ensure accountalilitt a senior management level for the complianeealisclosure of
those policies or a summary of those policies.

Documented procedures are in place to identifyenathat are likely to have a material effect omhice of the Company’s
securities and to ensure those matters are notifietie ASX in accordance with the Company's Listiige disclosure
requirements. The Managing Director and Chief Firer@fficer are responsible for monitoring the Comya activities in
light of its continuous disclosure policy and whaezessary, discussing disclosure obligations thighBoard.

The Company Secretary is responsible for all comoatinns with the ASX. All communications with extat stakeholders
in respect of sensitive company information is eabjto the relevant safeguarding and confidenjigdibcedures. These
communications are undertaken in light of contirmaisclosure requirements of the ASX and the brpadciples of
ensuring the market is fully informed of price séws information.

Principle 6: Respect the rights of shareholders

Recommendation 6:1Design a communications policy for promoting effaet communication with shareholders and
encouraging their participation at general meetingsd disclose their policy or a summary of that pyl. Use company
websites to complement the official release of mietieinformation to the market.

The Board encourages communication with shareholtetther stakeholders in an open, regular aneltimanner so that
the market has sufficient information to make infed investment decisions on the operations andtsesfithe Group.

Mechanisms employed include:

. regular shareholder communications such as Halfly &eports, and the Full Annual Financial Report;

. financial results presentations at the Company’'suaheeneral Meeting (“AGM”);

. shareholder access to communications through #hefusformation technology such as the Company'ssite; and
. utilising Computershare, the Company’s share regggryice provider.

The Board encourages full participation of sharetwddat the AGM to ensure a high level of accoultitgband
understanding of the Group’s strategy and goals. Gdmpany encourages the Group’s external auditattéod the AGM.

Principle 7: Recognise and manage risk

Recommendation 7.1: The Board or appropriate Board Coittee should establish policies on risk oversighhch
management of material business risk and disclossummary of those policies.

The Board is responsible for oversight of the Greujisk management and control framework (the Grdogs not have a
separate Risk Management Committee). The Audit Comenissists the Board in fulfilling its responsitktin this regard
by reviewing the financial and reporting aspectsh&f Group’s risk management and control framewdte Group has
implemented a policy framework designed to enshat the Group’s risks are identified and that calstare adequate, in
place and functioning effectively.

This framework will incorporate the maintenancecomprehensive policies, procedures and guidelinasencompass the

Group’s activities. It addresses areas such asraxinbhegotiation, project management, occupatitreglth and safety,
environmental management, trade practices, IT @isascovery and business continuity planning.
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Mothercare Australia Limited and Controlled Entitie s

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Principle 7: Recognise and manage risk (continued)

Recommendation 7.2: The Board should require managemé& design and implement the risk management and
internal control system to manage the company’s erél business risks and report to it on whether g®risks are being
managed effectively. The Board should disclose tmaanagement has reported to it as to the effectivenef the
company’s management of its material business risks

Responsibility for control and risk management ikegated to the appropriate level of managementinvitie Group with

the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officerving ultimate responsibility to the Board for theoBp’s risk

management and internal control activities. Arramgets put in place by the Board to monitor risk ngemaent and internal
controls include:

« regular monthly reporting to the Board in respeamérations and the financial position of the Group

« reports by the Chairman of the Audit Committee amdutation to the Board of the minutes of each meghield by the
Audit Committee;

« presentations made to the Board throughout the lye@ppropriate members of the Group’s managemem {@nd/or
independent advisers, where necessary) on theenafyparticular risks and details of the measurk&hvare either in
place or can be adopted to manage or mitigateiskpand

« any Director may request that operational and pt@adits be undertaken by management.

Recommendation 7.3: The Board should disclose whetihéras received assurance from the Chief ExecutivBii€gr (or
equivalent) and the Chief Financial Officer (or equaent) that the declaration provided in accordanedth section 295A
of the Corporations Act is founded on a sound systefirisk management and internal control and that eéhsystem is
operating effectively in all material respects ielation to financial reporting risks

Prior to signing the Group’s annual financial staats, the Company’s Managing Director and Chief iéred Officer
report in writing to the Board that:

« the declaration provided in accordance with sec#88A of the Corporations Act is founded on a sosystem of risk
management and internal compliance and controltwiniplements the policies adopted by the Board; and

« the Company’s risk management and internal compdiamd control framework is operating efficientlydasffectively in
all material respects.

Principle 8: Remunerate fairly and responsible

Recommendation 8.1: The Board should establish a remaration committee.

Recommendation 8.2: Companies should clearly distirguthe structure of non-executive directors’ remaration from
that of executive directors and senior executives.

The Group’s polices relating to Directors’ and Sertixecutives’ remunerations are set out in theu@annual report.

During the year a remuneration committee was dstedal consisting of Mr Ross Bartlett (Chairman), Mr Roblisavshon,
and Mr Jerry Cull.

The Group does not have any scheme for retiremeneflis, other than superannuation.

At the time of appointment, each Director and Sehigecutive signs a formal employment contractiointty their duties,
rights, responsibilities and any entitlements amteation. These duties and responsibilities axéewved annually by the
Board and when necessary is revised in consultatitmthe employee.

It is the Group’s objective to provide maximum sth&lder benefit from the retention of high qualtgard members and
Senior Executives by remunerating Directors and kegcutives fairly and appropriately with referentoe relevant
employment market conditions. To assist in achigwinis objective, the nature and amount of exeeutlirectors’ and
officers’ emoluments are linked to the Group’s fin@l and operational performance.
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MOTHERCARE AUSTRALIA LIMITED & CONTROLLED ENTITIES

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Continuing operations
Revenue

Total revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Interest incom
Selling expenses

Distribution expenses

Administration expenses

Other expenses

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs

Operating expenses

Loss from continuing operations before income tax ahgain on acquisition.

Gain on acquisition
Loss from continuing operations before income tax

Income tax benefit/ (expense)

Loss from continuing operations after income tax

Profit from discontinued operations

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Exchange differences on translation of foreign apilens

Total comprehensive income for the year

Mothercare Australia Limited Annual Report 2011

Notes

o O o o o o b~ o

32

33

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
65,657 23,521
65,657 23,521
(40,475) (10,766)
25,182 12,755
108 222
33€ 252
(30,866) (15,422)
(659) (90)
(7,168) (579)
(6,405) -
(2,426) (895)
(595) (328)
(48,119) (17,313)
(22,493) (4,085)
596 -
(21,897) (4,085)
594 (78)
(21,303) (4,163)
35 109
(21,268) (4,054)
25 2
(21,243) (4,052)
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Mothercare Australia Limited and Controlled Entitie s

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Notes CONSOLIDATED

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Loss for the year is attributable ta
Members of Mothercare Australia Limited (20,292) (3,185)
Non-controlling interest (976) (869)
(21,268) (4,054)
Total comprehensive income for the year is attributhle to:
Members of Mothercare Australia Limited (20,267) (3,184)
Non-controlling interest (976) (868)
(21,243) (4,052)
Earnings/(loss) per share for (loss)/profit attribuable to members of
Mothercare Australia Limited
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (cents per share) 24 (11.10) (2.66)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (cents per share) 24 (11.10) (2.66)

The accompanying notes form an integral part af $tatement of Comprehensive Income.
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MOTHERCARE AUSTRALIA LIMITED & CONTROLLED ENTITIES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2011

Notes CONSOLIDATED
2011 201
$'000 $'000

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 9 3,064 4,805
Trade and other receivables 10 283 1,364
Inventories 11 21,297 7,884
Derivative financial instruments 19 - 186
Other assets 12 429 44

25,073 14,283
Assets classified as held for sale 35 - 56
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 25,073 14,339
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 14 11,596 6,029
Intangible assets 15 8,737 6,546
Deferred tax assets 7 1,217 379
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 21,550 12,954
TOTAL ASSETS 46,623 27,293
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 16 15,715 8,631
Trade finance 9 6,963 3,144
Provisions 18 2,884 704
Borrowings 17 4,513 2,354
Derivative financial instruments 19 184 -

30,259 14,833
Liabilities directly associated with the assetssified as held for sale 35 - 3
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 30,259 14,836
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions 18 1,159 583
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,159 583
TOTAL LIABILITIES 31,418 15,419
NET ASSETS 15,205 11,874
EQUITY
Issued capital 20 57,825 31,001
Reserves 20 (2,303) 118
Accumulated losses 22 (40,317) (20,025)
Equity attributable to the members of Mothercarastfalia Limited

15,205 11,094
Non-controlling interest - 780
TOTAL EQUITY 15,205 11,874

The accompanying notes form an integral part af 8tatement of Financial Position.
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MOTHERCARE AUSTRALIA LIMITED & CONTROLLED ENTITIES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Accum.
losses

Issued Convertible
capital  note option
reserve
$'000

Note Foreign
currency
reserve

$' 000

Equity
reserve
$'000

$'000 $'000

As at 1 July 2009 31,001 i (111) )
Loss for the year - - - -
Foreign currency

translation - - 2 - -
differences

(16,840)
(3,185)

Total

$'000

14,050
(3,185)

2

Total
equity

Non-
control
Interest

$'000 $'000

- 14,050

(869)  (4,054)

- 2

Total

comprehensive - - 2 -
income for the year

Transactions with

owners in their

capacity as owners

Reversal of

contingent - - -
consideration

Non-controlling

interest on Kids - - - - -
Central acquisition
Issue of convertible
notes — equity
component, net of
deferred tax

(3,185)

123 -

- 104 - - -

(3,183)

123

104

(869)  (4,052)

- 123

1,649 1,649

- 104

As at 30 June 2010 31,001 104 (109) 123

(20,025) 1,094

780 11,874

As at 1 July 2010 31,001 104 (109) 123
Loss for the year - - - -
Foreign currency

translation - -

differences

(20,292)

(20,025)

11,094

(20,292)

25

780 11,874

(976)  (21,268)

- 25

Total

comprehensive - -
income for the year
Transactions with
owners in their
capacity as owners
Elimination of non-
controlling interest
on Kids Central
acquisition

Shares issued, net of
equity raising
Convertible note
movements net of
deferred tax

25 - (20,292)

(2,342) -

20 26,824 - - - -

20 - (104) - - -

(20,267)

(2,342)

26,824

(104)

(976) (21,243)

196 (2,146)

- 26,824

- (104)

As at 30 June 2011 57,825 - (84) (2,219)

(40,317) 15,205

- 15,205

The accompanying notes form an integral part oStatement of Changes in Equity
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MOTHERCARE AUSTRALIA LIMITED & CONTROLLED ENTITIES

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Notes CONSOLIDATED

2011 2010

$'000 $'000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 73,512 35,210
Payments to suppliers and employees (89,618) (39,199)
Interest received 336 257
Other income received - 176
Interest and other finance costs paid (518) (454)
Income tax (paid)/received (178) 37
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES 9 (16,466) (3,973)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net cash acquired on business combinations 32 - 438
Net cash outflow on business combinations 32 (4,740) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and gitbémassets (6,138) (2,726)
Net cash proceeds from sale of business 33 2,000 -
Net proceeds from sale of property 35 - 1,900
Payments for security deposits - (98)
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (8,878) (486)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings 3,879 774
Proceeds from related party loans 17 3,500 -
Repayment of borrowings (2,500) (1,114)
Repayment of leases - 27)
Proceeds from issue of shares 18,724 -
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 23,603 (367)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,741) (4,826)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the ye 4,805 9,632
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 9 3,064 4,805

The accompanying notes form an integral part ofStaement of Cash Flows.
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Mothercare Australia Limited and Controlled Entitie s

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The financial report of Mothercare Australia Lintitand its controlled entities for the year ended@@e 2011 was authorised for
issue in accordance with a resolution of the dinecon 30 September 2011.

Mothercare Australia Limited (“the Company”) is angmany limited by shares incorporated and domicifedustralia whose
shares are publicly traded on the Australian SdearExchange.

On the 22December 2010 Headline Group Limited was renaméddimercare Australia Limited.

The principal activities during the year within tBempany was the sale of educational toys, pareatioigchildren’s products and
mother and child fashion.

The Company is focused on marketing and retailindusive brands to the Australian parenting anddehil’'s market segment.
The Company is continuing an exciting growth phagh the roll-out of Mothercare in Australia and N&galand.

The registered office and principal place of businef the Company is Level 1, Building 220/2A, Thedetainment Quarter, 122
Lang Road, Moore Park, NSW 2021.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements are general purpose fiabstatements, which have been prepared in acooedaith the requirements of
the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Account8tgndards including Interpretations, issued byAbstralian Accounting
Standards Board ("AASB").

The financial statements have been prepared ostarical cost basis, except for derivative finahoiatruments that have been
measured at fair value.

The financial statements are presented in Austradiallars and all values are rounded to the nedhestsand dollars ($'000)
unless otherwise stated under the option availkabtee Company under ASIC Class Order 98/0100. The @oynjs an entity to
which the class order applies.

(b) Going Concern

The consolidated entity has incurred an after ¢as for the financial year of $21.3 million (2082.2 million) and has net current
asset deficiency of $5.2 million. Notwithstandirfgst the directors have prepared the financial tepo a going concern basis,
which contemplates continuity of normal businessvidies and the realisation of assets and thdeseéint of liabilities in the
ordinary course of business, due to the followirtigating factors:

. The consolidated entity has undertaken a 1 forrbneaounceable rights issue which will raise appnately $7.6 million;

. The current liabilities total at the year end imga a $3.5 million loan from Mothercare UK and litger family Company
which will be capitalised upon completion of thghts issue;

. The company is compliant with its banking covenanmith the exception of certain obligations (whicb dot involve the
payment of money to ANZ) in the ANZ facility. Thebeeaches have been waived by ANZ, subject to icecanditions
which the company expects to fulfil. This will réisim the reclassification of $869k of bank delatrfr current to non- current
liabilities;

. The consolidated entity’s results for the year eéng@ June 2011 included $6.4 million of non-reagrsignificant expenses
and write-downs;

. The conversion of Babies Galore and Baby On a Bustge¢s to Mothercare is underway and is havingsitige impact on
the trading and gross profit performance of thésees; and

. Head office costs have been reduced by approxiyna@ets.

(c) Reporting period and prior year comparatives

The financial statements have been prepared foygheended 30 June 2011. The previous reportirigipeas for the year ended
30 June 2010.

(d) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Compauyits subsidiaries comply with Internationaldfinial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accountingn@sads Board (IASB).
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Mothercare Australia Limited and Controlled Entitie s

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continu ed)

(e) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations noyet mandatory or early adopted

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretatibias have recently been issued or amended buioanget mandatory, have not
been early adopted by the consolidated entity fier annual reporting period ended 30 June 2011.cDnsolidated entity's
assessment of the impact of these new or amendeduAting Standards and Interpretations, most ratetmthe consolidated
entity, are set out below.

AASB 2009-12 Amendments to Australian Accountiagdards

These amendments are applicable to annual repgoenigds beginning on or after 1 January 2011. &rerendments make
numerous editorial amendments to a range of Auatrélccounting Standards and Interpretations, whiate no major impact on
the requirements of the amended pronouncementsaddgtion of these amendments from 1 July 2011 wvatl have a material
impact on the consolidated entity.

AASB 2010-5 Amendments to Australian Accountingdarals

These amendments are applicable to annual repguénigds beginning on or after 1 January 2011. &reeendments makes
numerous editorial amendments to a range of AustraAccounting Standards and Interpretations, bliclg amendments to
reflect changes made to the text of Internatioraficial Reporting Standards by the Internationatcdmting Standards Board.
The adoption of these amendments from 1 July 20l het have a material impact on the consolidatatity.

AASB 9 Financial Instruments, 2009-11 AmendmentAustralian Accounting Standards arising from AASEand 2010-7
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standardsragifiom AASB 9

This standard and its consequential amendmentapgoiéecable to annual reporting periods beginningoomfter 1 January 2013
and completes phase | of the IASB's project to mplAS 39 (being the international equivalent to %\ 139 'Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’). Thisdstal introduces new classification and measurementels for financial
assets, using a single approach to determine whatfieancial asset is measured at amortised adfstirovalue. To be classified
and measured at amortised cost, assets must sttésfiyusiness model test for managing the finarasakbts and have certain
contractual cash flow characteristics. All otheraficial instrument assets are to be classifiedraedsured at fair value. This
standard allows an irrevocable election on initeadognition to present gains and losses on equdtiyliments (that are not held-
for-trading) in other comprehensive income, withidiénds as a return on these investments beingmészd in profit or loss. In
addition, those equity instruments measured atvidine through other comprehensive income wouldbnger have to apply any
impairment requirements nor would there be anyythaeg’' of gains or losses through profit or loss disposal. The accounting
for financial liabilities continues to be classdfiand measured in accordance with AASB 139, with exeeption, being that the
portion of a change of fair value relating to tmity’s own credit risk is to be presented in othemprehensive income unless it
would create an accounting mismatch. The conseantity will adopt this standard from 1 July 204i® the impact of its
adoption is yet to be assessed by the consolidatey.

AASB 2010-4 Further Amendments to Australian Actbogrstandards arising from the Annual Improvemétrtgect

These amendments are applicable to annual repgogngds beginning on or after 1 January 2011. @reeendments are a
consequence of the annual improvements project mmakie numerous non-urgent but necessary amendmerdasrange of
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretatidiiee amendments provide clarification of disclesumn AASB 7 'Financial
Instruments: Disclosures', in particular emphasithe interaction between quantitative and qualieatlisclosures and the nature
and extent of risks associated with financial mstent; clarifies that an entity can present anyamalof other comprehensive
income for each component of equity, either in stegement of changes in equity or in the notescao@ance with AASB 101
'‘Presentation of Financial Instruments'; and presiguidance on the disclosure of significant eventstransactions in AASB 134
‘Interim Financial Reporting'. The adoption of thesaendments from 1 July 2011 will not have a maltarpact on the
consolidated entity.

AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures (December 2009)

This revised standard is applicable to annual témprperiods beginning on or after 1 January 20THis revised standard
simplifies the definition of a related party by rifging its intended meaning and eliminating incistancies from the definition.
The definition now identifies a subsidiary and asaxiate with the same investor as related padfesach other; entities
significantly influenced by one person and entisemificantly influenced by a close member of tamily of that person are no
longer related parties of each other; and whenay®rson or entity has both joint control over @ose entity and joint control or
significant influence over a third party, the set@nd third entities are related to each others Tévised standard introduces a
partial exemption of disclosure requirement for ggovnent-related entities. The adoption of this ddéad from 1 July 2011 will
not have a material impact on the consolidatedyenti
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Mothercare Australia Limited and Controlled Entitie s

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continu ed)

(e) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations noyet mandatory or early adopted (continued)
AASB 2010-6 Amendments to Australian Accountingd@rals - Disclosures on Transfers of Financial Asse

These amendments are applicable to annual repqutirigds beginning on or after 1 July 2011. Theseradiments add and amend
disclosure requirements in AASB 7 about transféfirgncial assets, including the nature of the faiahassets involved and the

risks associated with them. The adoption of thesenaiments from 1 July 2011 will increase the dsete requirements on the

consolidated entity when an asset is transferredshoot derecognised and new disclosure requideehvassets are derecognised
but the consolidated entity continues to have dicoimg exposure to the asset after the sale

(f) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprisefitencial statements of Mothercare Australia Lirditand its subsidiaries
referred to collectively throughout these finanai@tements as the “Group” or “consolidated entity”

Subsidiaries are all those entities over whichdbmpany has the power to govern the financial gretating policies, generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one-Hathe voting rights. The effects of potential exsable voting rights are
considered when assessing whether control existssi@aries are fully consolidated from the dateadrich control is transferred
to the consolidated entity. They are de-consolilfiem the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unreaja®d on transaction between entities in the catfestgld entity are

eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminatdess the transaction provides evidence of the immaat of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries and specialpose entities have been changed where necessamguioe consistency with the
policies adopted by the consolidated entity.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted fongishe acquisition method of accounting. Referi® ‘Business Combinations’
accounting policy for further details. A change awnership interest, without the loss of control,aiscounted for as equity
transaction, where the difference between the densiion transferred and the book value of theeslofirthe non-controlling
interest acquired is recognised directly in egattyibutable to the parent.

Non-controlling interest in the results and equifysubsidiaries are shown separately in the StatesfeComprehensive Income
and Statement of Financial Position of the constéid entity. Losses incurred by the consolidateiyesre attributed to the non-
controlling interest in full, even if that resultsa deficit balance.

Where the consolidated entity loses control ovaulasidiary, it derecognises the assets includimglgdl, liabilities

and non-controlling interest in the subsidiary thge with any cumulative translation differencesagnised in equity. The
consolidated entity recognises the fair value ef ¢bnsideration received and the fair value of iangstment retained together
with any gain or loss in profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for it tess any impairment, in the parent entity. @&vids received from subsidiaries
are recognised as other income by the parent emtiyits receipt may be an indicator of an impairhad the investment.

The change in accounting policy has been appliedpactively.

(g) Business Combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used taant for business combinations regardless of whethaity instruments or
other assets are acquired.

The consideration transferred is the sum of thelia@t@pn-date fair values of the assets transferegdity instruments

issued or liabilities incurred by the acquirer donfier owners of the acquiree and the amount ofnamycontrolling interest in the
acquiree. For each business combination, the notraiting interest in the acquiree is measured ititee fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiatBeassets. All acquisition costs are expensedcasried.

On the acquisition of a business, the consolidaetity assesses the financial assets acquired iabiities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in agdance with the contractual terms, economic comtithe consolidated entity’s
operating or accounting policies and other pertimenditions in existence at the acquisition-date.

Where the business combination is achieved in stafe consolidated entity remeasures its prewdusld equity interest in the

acquiree at the acquisition-date fair value anddifference between the fair value and the previmarsying amount is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Mothercare Australia Limited and Controlled Entitie s

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continu ed)

(g) Business combinations (continued)

Contingent consideration to be transferred by thlpiiaer is recognised at the acquisition-date faiug. Subsequent changes in
the fair value of contingent consideration classifas an asset or liability is recognised in pafiloss.

Contingent consideration classified as equity israoteasured and its subsequent settlement is aecbfom within equity.

The difference between the acquisition-date faineraf assets acquired, liabilities assumed andnamycontrolling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the consideratiamdferred and the fair value of any pre-existingegtment in the acquiree is
recognised as goodwill. If the consideration transd and the pre-existing fair value is less ttenfair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired, being a bargain purchase tactjuirer, the difference is recognised as a dja@ttly in profit or loss by the
acquirer on the acquisition-date, but only aftee@ssessment of the identification and measureafehe net assets acquired, the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree, if arhye tonsideration transferred and the acquirer'sipusly held equity interest in the
acquirer.

Business combinations are initially accounted foreaoprovisional basis. The acquirer retrospectivajusts the provisional
amounts recognised and also recognises additi@satsaor liabilities during the measurement periased on new information
obtained about the facts and circumstances thstegkat the acquisition-date. The measurementgenrids on either the earlier of
(i) 12 months from the date of the acquisitionigrnghen the acquirer receives all the informatmossible to determine fair value.

(h) Segment reporting
Change in accounting policy from 1 July 2009

Operating segments are presented using the ‘mamageapproach’, where the information presentechishe same basis as the
internal reports provided to the Chief Operating iBiea Makers (‘CODM’). The CODM is responsible foretallocation of
resources to operating segments and assessingénfErmance.

(i) Foreign currency translation
Both the functional and presentation currency of Motare Australia Limited and its Australian sukzgiés is Australian Dollars

3).

Transactions in foreign currencies are initiallgarded in the functional currency by applying tikelmnge rates ruling at the date
of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilitiesominated in foreign currencies are retranslatetie rate of exchange ruling
at the reporting date.

All exchange differences in the consolidated finahstatements are taken to the Statement of Corapsée Income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in termssibfical cost in a foreign currency are translatsihg the exchange rate as at
the date of the initial transaction.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in aidoreurrency are translated using the exchangs edtthe date
when the fair value was determined.

The functional currency of the overseas subsidgkginsen Giftware (UK) Limited is Pounds SterlindB®& and of the Early
Learning Centre Limited in New Zealand is NZ do(§ZD).

As at the reporting date the assets and liabildfele overseas subsidiary is translated intgtiesentation currency
of Mothercare Australia Limited at the rate of eabe ruling at the reporting date and the Statewfe@bmprehensive Income is
translated at the weighted average exchange @tésef period.

The exchange differences arising on the retranslatire taken directly to a separate component oityggoeing the foreign
currency reserve.

(j) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of RaldPasition comprise cash at bank and in handsft-term deposits with
maturity of 4 months or less that are readily catible to known amounts of cash and which are sukgan insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flowh, anad cash equivalents consist of cash and castadents as defined above,

net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdmaftsincluded within interest-bearing loans and @eings in current liabilities
on the Statement of Financial Position.
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Mothercare Australia Limited and Controlled Entitie s

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continue d)

(k) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised at fair valuesahdequently at amortised cost using the effedtitarest rate method. Trade
receivables, which generally have 30-90 day terms.

Collectibility of trade receivables is reviewed am @ngoing basis. Debts which are known to be uactble are written off by
reducing the carrying amount directly. A provisifum impairment of trade receivables is raised wti@re is objective evidence
that the consolidated entity will not be able tdlext all amounts due according to the originahteiof the receivables. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probabilithat the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financiabrganisation and default or
delinquency in payments (more than 90 days overdte)considered indicators that the trade recedvaidy be impaired. The
amount of the impairment allowance is the diffeehetween the asset’s carrying amount and thengreakie of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effectivieiiast rate. Cash flows relating to short-term reddes are not discounted if the
effect of discounting is immaterial.

() Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost orraatisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its pmesecation and condition is accounted for as folo
. Finished goods and work-in-progress — cost of timtterials, freight and import charges.

. Net realisable value is the estimated selling piicéhe ordinary course of business, less the astidhcosts of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(m) Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instrumentshsas forward currency contracts to hedge its rasociated with foreign
currency fluctuations. Such derivative financiatmments are stated at fair value.

Forward currency contracts are entered into whgreesnents are made to buy or sell specified amafrftareign currencies in
the future at a predetermined exchange rate. Tjgetle is to match the contract with anticipatatife cash flows from sales and
purchases in foreign currencies, to protect agdhespossibility of loss from future exchange fliations. The forward currency
contracts are usually for no longer than 6 months.

The Company does not apply hedge accounting a# dot meet the requirements of the Australian Aoting Standards. The
fair value of forward currency contracts are redsgd through the Statement of Comprehensive Incolmenwhe underlying
transaction is recognised in income. Net receipts payments are recognised through the StatemeBowiprehensive Income.
Any gains or losses arising from changes in faiu@are taken directly to the Statement of Comprsiverincome.

The fair value of forward currency contracts iscatdted by reference to current forward exchantgsrior contracts with similar
maturity profiles.

(n) Non-current assets and disposal groups held faale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets and disposal groups are cledsif held for sale and measured at the loweredrf ¢arrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell if their carrying amouiit be recovered principally through a sale tratigec For an asset or disposal
group to be classified as held for sale, it mustiba@lable for immediate sale in its present caaditind its sale must be highly
probable.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initialsobsequent write-down of the asset (or dispogalrto fair value less costs to
sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent as®e in fair value less costs to sell of an agsetli§posal group), but not in
excess of any cumulative impairment loss previoustypgnised. A gain or loss not previously recogphisy the date of the sale of
the non-current asset (or disposal group) is resegmat the date of derecognition.

A discontinued operation is a component of thetetitiat has been disposed of or is classified &kfoe sale and that represents a
separate major line of business or geographical ef®perations, is part of a single coordinatexhfb dispose of such a line of
business or area of operations, or is a subsidieguired exclusively with a view to resale. Theutssof discontinued operations

are presented separately on the face of the Statexh€omprehensive Income.
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Mothercare Australia Limited and Controlled Entitie s

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continue d)

(o) Property, plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is stated at historical cast &&cumulated depreciation and accumulated impairtosses.

Land and buildings are measured at fair value, aseperiodic but at least triennial valuationsexyernal independent valuers,
less accumulated depreciation on buildings anddegsmpairment losses recognised after the datalaktion.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basisll property, plant and equipment, other thraetold land.

Major depreciation periods are: 2011 2010
Plant and equipment 5to 15 years 5to 15 years

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and asatidin methods are reviewed, and adjusted if gppate, at each financial year
end.

The carrying values of fixed assets are reviewednfpairment when events or changes in circumstirgicate the carrying
value may not be recoverable.

For an asset that does not generate largely indepéwcash inflows, the recoverable amount is deteuinfor the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. If any such inibhcaexists and where the carrying values exceedeftimated recoverable
amount, the assets or cash-generating units artermvdown to their recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of fixed assets is the grextfair value less costs to sell and value ie. s assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to tpeéisent value using a pre-tax discount rate tefiéats current market
assessments of the time value of money and the sjsécific to the asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derexisgd upon disposal or when no future economicfiisreee expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of theeagcalculated as the difference between theispbsal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is includetié Statement of Comprehensive Income in the gé¢hie item is derecognised.

(p) Recoverable amount of assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whtther is any indication that an asset may be iradai¥Where an indicator of
impairment exists, the Group makes a formal es@nadtrecoverable amount. Where the carrying amofiain asset exceeds its
recoverable amount the asset is considered impairéds written down to its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is the greater of fair valuedesss to sell and value in use. It is determirmedchh individual asset, unless the
asset’s value in use cannot be estimated to be ttoits fair value less costs to sell and it doasgenerate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assetsroups of assets, in which case, the recoverableuatrie determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future ffaws are discounted to their present value usimge-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the timeeval money and the risks specific to the asset.

(q) Leases

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group sutialigrall the risks and benefits incidental to aawship of the leased item, are
capitalised at the inception of the lease at tlrevidue of the leased asgat, if lower, at the present value of the minimwrade
payments. Lease payments are apportioned betweefindnce charges and reduction of the lease iliplsib as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balaf¢ke liability. Finance charges are recognisedraexpense in profit or loss.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated ovendineisof the estimated useful life of the asseherlease term.
Leases where the lessor retains substantiallyhalkisks and benefits of ownership of the assetlassified as operating leases.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an mgilng lease are added to the carrying amounteighsed asset and recognised

over the lease term on the same bases as tharieasee.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an®xpethe Statement of Comprehensive Income oram@lstrline basis over the
lease term.

Lease incentives under operating leases are resmayiais liabilities. The incentives are recognisedther income on a straight
line basis.
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Mothercare Australia Limited and Controlled Entitie s

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continue d)

(r) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired as part of a businesbioation, other than goodwill, are initially meast at their fair value at the
date of the acquisition. Intangible assets acquémgarately are initially recognised at cost. Igihle assets are subsequently
measured at cost less amortisation and any impairmEhe gains or losses recognised in profit ors lasising from the
derecognition of an intangible asset is measuretthagslifference between net disposal proceeds lamaadrrying amount of the
intangible assets. The method and useful livesrnifeflife intangibles are reviewed annually. Chage expected pattern of
consumption or useful life are accounted for prosipely by changing the amortisation method or @eri

Goodwill

Where an entity or operation is acquired in a bessncombination, the identifiable net assets aeduire measured at fair value.
The excess of the fair value of the cost of theuaitiopn over the fair value of the identifiabletrassets acquired is brought to
account as goodwill. Goodwill is not amortised.téagl, goodwill is tested annually for impairmentpmre frequently if events or

changes in circumstances indicate that it mighinipaired, and is carried at cost less accumulatgzhirment losses. Impairment
losses on goodwill are taken to profit or loss arelnot subsequently reversed.

Licences and development right

Other intangibles include costs associated withattruisition of the development right of the Motta@e name and store concept,
as well as the acquisition of the Kids Central aadyE_earning Centre licences. The licences andIdpweent right will be
amortised over a period between 10 to 20 years.

Patents and trademarks

Significant costs associated with patents and tnades are deferred and amortised on a straightlésés over the period of their
expected benefit, being their finite life of 10 y®a

Customer database
Customer database was acquired as part of an aamuisias been recognised at fair value and withimertised over 8 years.

(s) Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets that havenalefinite useful life are not subject to amortisatand are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changesircumstances indicate that they might be imgghi Other non-financial
assets are reviewed for impairment whenever evanthanges in circumstances indicate that the ica&rrgmount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognisedtieramount by which the asset’s carrying amountes&és recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's#ire less costs to sell and value-in-use. Theevaltuse is the present value of
the estimated future cash flows relating to thestagsing a pre-tax discount rate specific to theeer cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. Assets that do not halependent cash flows are grouped together to fazash-generating unit.

(t) Trade and other payables

Trade payables and other payables represent fiabifor goods and services provided to the Graigr o the end of the financial
year that are unpaid and arise when the Group besailiged to make future payments in respect@ptirchase of these goods
and services. The amounts are unsecured and alyysaid within 30 days of recognition.

Due to their short term nature they are measuradhattised cost and not discounted.

(u) Finance costs

Finance costs attributable to qualifying assetscapstalised as part of the asset. All other firraoosts are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred, including:

e interest on short-term and long-term borrowings
e interest on trade finance

e interest on finance leases

(v) Employee benefits
Wages and salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including noorratary benefits, and annual leave expected tettied within 12 months of the
reporting date are recognised in current liabdifie respect of employees' services up to the tieggodate and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilitiessattled
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continue d)

(v) Employee benefits (continued)
Long service leave

The liability for long service leave is recognigacturrent and non-current liabilities, dependimgtibe unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 mon#fter the reporting date. The liability is measuasdthe present value of expected
future payments to be made in respect of servicegiged by employees up to the reporting date udiegprojected unit credit
method. Consideration is given to expected futurgewand salary levels, experience of employee degesrtand periods of
service. Expected future payments are discountedyusarket yields at the reporting date on natiagmlernment bonds with
terms to maturity and currency that match, as gfjasepossible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Defined contribution superannuation expense
Contributions to defined contribution superannuatitans are expensed in the period in which theyremarred.

(w) Share-based payment transactions

In 2003 the Group provided benefits to employeeghef Group in the form of share-based payment actitns, whereby
employees were granted rights over shares (‘ec@itifed transactions’) as part of their salary imeentive scheme.

The Employee Share Option Plan is currently the pfdn in place and no further options have beantgd since 2003. The cost
of these equity-settled transactions with employe@seasured by reference to the fair value oktpgty instruments at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is deterahipg management using the Black-Scholes model.

In valuing equity-settled transactions, no accasaken of any performance conditions, other tbamditions linked to the price
of the shares of Mothercare Australia Limited (‘ketrconditions’).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recaghisogether with a corresponding increase in ggaiter the period in which the
performance conditions are fulfilled (the vestiregipd), ending on the date on which the relevantleyees become fully entitled
to the award (‘vesting date’).

The cumulative expense recognised for equity-gkttBnsactions at each reporting date until vestatg reflects:
(i) the grant date fair value of the award
(i) the number of awards that, in the opinion of ttreabrs of the Group, will ultimately vest and

(i) the extent to which the vesting period has expifdds opinion is formed based on the best availatfiermation at the
reporting date. No adjustment is made for the ilikagld of market performance conditions being methaseffect of these
conditions is included in the determination of faatue at grant date.

No expense is recognised for awards that do nohatkely vest, except for awards where vesting isdétmonal upon a market
condition.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are fiealias a minimum an expense is recognised dweitearms had not been
modified. In addition, an expense is recognisedafoy increase in the value of the transaction essalt of the modification, as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, iteéated as if it had vested on the date of canamtlabnd any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediatébyvever, if a new award is substituted for thecedled award, and designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is eglatite cancelled and new award are treated heyifwere a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous pargyr

The dilutive effect, if any, of outstanding optiosseflected as additional share dilution in tbenputation of diluted earnings per
share.

(x) Issued capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Increateusts directly attributable to the issue of réhares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proseed

(y) Revenue

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair gthe consideration received or receivable toektent that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group ane tievenue can be reliably measured. The followpegi§ic recognition criteria
must also be met before revenue is recognised:
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continue d)

(y) Revenue (continued)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks r@weards of ownership of the goods have passethadbtiyer and costs
incurred or to be incurred in respect of the tratisa can be measured reliably. Risks and rewarels@ansidered passed to the
buyer at the time the goods have been despatchbd tustomer.

Interest
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues (t@rgffective interest method, which is the rat exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected lifdeffinancial instrument) to the net carrying amaeifithe financial asset.

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Group’s right toiveqeayments is established.

Royalties
Revenue is recognised when the Group receives yladtystatement from the licensee.

(z) Income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the curremtt prior periods are measured at the amount exgppéatiee recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities based on the curreribgs taxable income. The tax rates and tax laseduo compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enactéebyeporting date.

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporaffedénces at the reporting date between the tagshafsassets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting posps.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recogniseddibtaxable temporary differences:

. in respect of taxable temporary differences assetiavith investments in subsidiaries, associatab iaterests in joint
ventures, except where the timing of the rever§ahe temporary differences can be controlled dnd probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the fexsble future; and

e except where the deferred income tax liability esidrom the initial recognition of goodwill or ohaasset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combinationthat] at the time of the transaction, affects reithe accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax asseteviewed at each reporting date and reducedetextent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be #ahle to allow all or part of the deferred incotag asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reaslsas each reporting date and are recognisecetextient that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow tdeferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are ovegisat the tax rates that are expected to apptiidojear when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based onrabes (and tax laws) that have been enacted otagulvely enacted at the reporting
date.

Income taxes relating to items recognised direictigquity are recognised in equity and not in ti@e3nent of Comprehensive
Income.

Mothercare Australia Limited and its wholly-ownedugtralian controlled entities have implemented thae consolidation
legislation.

The head entity, Mothercare Australia Limited alnel tontrolled entities in the tax consolidated groantinue to account for their
own current and deferred tax amounts. The Grougppked the group allocation approach in detemgithe appropriate amount
of current taxes and deferred taxes to allocatedmbers of the tax consolidated group.

In addition to its own current and deferred tax ants, Mothercare Australia Limited also recognigescurrent tax liabilities (or
assets) and the deferred tax assets arising fragedntax losses and unused tax credits assumed from
controlled entities in the tax consolidated group.

Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding e®mnents with the tax consolidated entities aregreised as amounts receivable
from or payable to other entities in the Group.

Any difference between the amounts assumed andrsiceceivable or payable under the tax fundingement are recognised as
a contribution to (or distribution from) wholly —owed tax consolidated entities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continue d)

(aa) Other taxes
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognisedimetaiount of GST except:

. where the GST incurred on a purchase of goods emvitss is not recoverable from the taxation authan which case the
GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisibiothe asset or as part of the expense itempiabple; and
. receivables and payables which are stated witltin@unt of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payshl¢he taxation authority is included as partesfaivables or payables in the
Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash $low a gross basis and the GST component of casls frising from
investing and financing activities, which is recralgde from, or payable to, the taxation authoty classified
as operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed néecdimount of GST recoverable from, or payableh® taxation authority.

(ab) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated as net pttrfibutable to members, adjusted to exclude afsservicing equity (other than
dividends) divided by the weighted average numli@rdinary shares, adjusted for any bonus elementsdinary shares issued
during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated as ndit @ttributable to members, adjusted for:
. costs of servicing equity (other than dividends);

. the after tax effect of dividends and interest asged with dilutive potential ordinary shares thawe been recognised as
expenses; and

. other non-discretionary changes in revenues orresgeduring the period that would result from tHetidn of potential
ordinary shares;

. divided by the weighted average numbers of ordirstigres and dilutive potential ordinary sharesysidfl for any bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the €iiahgear.

(ac) Convertible notes

The fair value of the liability portion of a convile note is determined using a market interest far an equivalent non-
convertible note. This amount is recorded as dliiglon an amortised cost basis until extinguistoedconversion or maturity of
the notes. The remainder of the proceeds is a#tdctt the conversion option. This is recognised iactided in shareholders’
equity, net of income tax effects.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIO NS

In applying the Group’s accounting policies managetrcontinually evaluates judgements, estimatesamsdmptions based on
experience and other factors, including expectatiohfuture events that may have an impact on thmu& All judgements,

estimates and assumptions made are believed tedsmnable based on the most current set of ciranoed available to
management. Actual results may differ from the prdgnts, estimates and assumptions. Significantejudgts, estimates and
assumptions made by management in the prepardtibese financial statements are outlined below:

i) Recovery of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductidstearary differences as management considers ttligfprobable that future
taxable profits will be available to utilise thesenporary differences.

i) Business combinations

As discussed in note 2(g), business combinatiossiratially accounted for on a provisional basiheTfair value of assets
acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilitiessased are initially estimated by management takitg consideration all available
information at the reporting date. Fair value atipents on the finalisation of the business combnaaccounting is retrospective,
where applicable, to the period the combinationuosd and may have an impact on the assets antitish depreciation and
amortisation reported.

iii) Goodwill and other indefinite life intangible assets

The consolidated entity tests annually whether galbdnd other indefinite life intangible assetsvbasuffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated irer&ft). The recoverable amounts of cash-generatiitg have been determined
based on fair value less costs to sell.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIO NS (continued)

iv) Impairment of non-financial assets other than godwill and other indefinite life intangible assets

The consolidated entity assesses impairment offinancial assets other than goodwill and other finéte life intangible assets at
each reporting date by evaluating conditions smet¢d the consolidated entity and to the particldaset that may lead to
impairment. If an impairment trigger exists theaegrable amount of the asset is determined. Thizlwas fair value less costs to
sell or value-in-use calculations, which incorperatnumber of key estimates and assumptions.

CONSOLIDATED

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
4. REVENUE
Revenue from sales of goods 65,657 23,521
Interest received — external parties 336 252
Total revenues from ordinary activities 65,993 31,338
5. OTHER INCOME
Profit on sale of property (Lisarow) - 25
Sundry income - 89
Landlord contribution 108 108
108 222
6. EXPENSES
(a) Loss before income tax includes the following spific expenses:
Selling expenses
Employment and contracting expenses 13,503 7,362
Rental charges 11,559 4,702
Other selling expenses 5,804 3,358
30,866 15,422
Distribution expenses 659 90
Administration expenses
Employment and contracting expenses 4,428 -
Rental charges 136 -
Administration and office expenses* 2,604 579
7,168 579
*FY2010 selling expenses includes administratiogeg due to restructuring of
the business and changes to reporting, admin@tratages are excluded from
selling expenses in FY 2011.
Other significant expenses
Foreign exchange loss 1,995 125
Disposal of store assets- closed BG stores 1,700 -
Write off of Kids Central intangible (note 15) 693 -
Non-continuing administration costs 2,017 -
6,405 125
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation - plant & equipment 2,274 779
Amortisation - licence and development Rights 152 116
2,426 895
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6. EXPENSES (continued)

Finance costs
Interest expense - HP

Interest expense - convertible notes
Interest expense - shareholder loan
Interest expense — bank loan

Interest expense - trade finance facility

Employee benefits expenses
Wages and salaries & contracting
Workers compensation costs
Superannuation costs

Payroll tax

Other employment expenses

Net fair value (gain)/loss on derivative financiainstruments

Rental expenses relating to operating leases
Minimum lease payments

7. INCOME TAX

Major components of income tax (benefit)/expensetfe financial year includes:

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Current income tax

Deferred tax relating to origination and reverdaieonporary differences

Income tax (benefit)/expense reported in the Staterof Comprehensive Income
Deferred tax included in income tax (benefit)/exg@nomprises:

Increase in deferred tax assets

Decrease in deferred tax liabilities
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CONSOLIDATED

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
- 1
156 180
19 -
98 -
322 147
595 328
15,275 6,259
205 48
1,286 498
695 338
470 219
17,931 7,362
370 (186)
11,695 4,789
(594) 78
(594) 78
(594) (79)
- 157
(594) 78
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7. INCOME TAX (continued)

Numerical reconciliation between income tax (beneflfexpense recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income to prima faeitax payable

Loss before income tax (benefit)/expense from caitig operations

Tax at the Australian statutory income tax rat8@# (2010: 30%)
Non deductible items

Tax gain on sale of business and property

Tax losses not brought to account

Adjustment to prior year tax accounts

Income tax (benefit)/expense

Applicable weighted average effective tax ratesaaréollows

CONSOLIDATED

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
(21,897) (4,085)

(6,569) (1,226)

1,229 24
- 264
4,773 1,044
- (28)
(594) 78
2.7% 1.9%

There has not been a significant movement in tipdicgble tax rate calculated above. The reasompipiicable rate is so low in
comparison to the Australian statutory rate is thatgroup are not recognising tax losses in thte8tent of Financial Position.
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7. INCOME TAX (continued)
Deferred income ta

Deferred income tax comprises temporary differences
relating to the following:

Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value adjustment to land and buildings classiés held
for sale

Gross deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax asse
Employee leave entitlements
Other employee related items
Provision for doubtful debts
Stock obsolescence and other accruals
Amortisation of intangibles
Unrealised exchange loss

Gross deferred tax assets

Adjustments to deferred tax assets on businessioatitns
(Note 32)

Adjustments to deferred tax assets on reclassdicatf
assets as discontinued operations

Made up as follow:
Continuing operatior

Deferred tax expense/(bene

Aggregate deferreincome tax expense is attributable
Continuing operatior
Discontinued operatio

Tax losses

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENT OF

POSITION COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000

- - - (79)
396 252 (144) (166)
92 24 (68) (13)
- 8 8 22
729 73 (656) (31)
- 22 22 (22)
- - - 82
1,217 379
244 142
- 143
1,217 37¢
1,217 37¢
(594, 78
(594, (65)
- 142
(594) 78

Management of Mothercare Australia Limited has inemk advice that the revenue and capital tax losgethe Mothercare
Australia Limited tax consolidated group will beadtable subject to the entity continuing to paskesithe continuity of ownership
or same business test criteria in the future adnedt in the Income Tax Assessment Act. The outcarithe capital raising

subsequent to year end may affect the ability efgioup to pass these tests.

The Australian tax consolidated group has approtelpa$33.3 million of revenue and capital tax 1as810.0 million tax
effected). Of the Mothercare Australia Limited reue and capital tax losses, approximately $19.8iamilare able to be

immediately applied with the remainder subjecthteit reduced loss utilisation rates.

Tax consolidation

Mothercare Australia Limited and its 100% owned sidiaries are a tax consolidated group. Membertheftax consolidated
group have entered into a tax sharing/funding aeearent in order to allocate income tax expenseéfit¢no the wholly owned

subsidiaries on the basis as if they were indiVitlwaentities.
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8. DIVIDENDS PAID
Dividends paid during the year

Franking credit balance

The amount of franking credits available for thbsequent financial year are :
Franking account balance as at the end of the dinhpear at 30% (2010: 30%)
Franking debits that will arise from the refundrdome tax payable as at the end
of the financial year

9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and in hand

Deposits at call

CONSOLIDATED

Cash at bank and in hand earns interest at floaditeg based on daily deposit
rates and fixed interest.

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is@B0D0 (2010: $4,805,000).

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flowh, ared cash equivalents
comprise the following at the reporting date:

Balance as above

Cash at bank and in hand attributable to discontimperations (note 33)

2011 2010

$'000 $000
2,996 2,996
2,996 2,996
3,064 650
- 4,155
3,064 4,805
3,064 4,805
3,064 4,805
1
3,064 4,806
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9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Reconciliation of the net loss after tax to the netash flows from operations
Net loss after tax
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Gain on sale of properties held for resale
Impairment expense
Doubtful debts
Fair value adjustment on foreign exchange contraatstanding
Foreign exchange losses
Other non-cash items
Changes in assets and liabilities
Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/decrease in inventory
(Increase) in deferred tax asset
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments/sundry debtors
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase in provisions
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax liability

CONSOLIDATED

Net cash flow from operating activities

The consolidated entity and the parent entity tearek bills/letter of credit facility.
Financing facilities available

At reporting date, the following financing facié8 had been negotiated and were
available:

Total facilities available
Forward exchange contracts
Trade finance
Credit cards

Used at the reporting date:
Forward exchange contracts
Trade finance (a)
Credit cards

Unused at the reporting date:
Forward exchange contracts
Trade finance

Credit cards
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2011 2010
$'000 $'000

(21,243) (4,054)
2,426 1,067

- (25)

693 137

- (56)

184 (458)
1,771 125
(105) (134)
(605) 904
(4,530) (2,713)
(586) 57
(393) 305
4,420 498
1,502 453

- (79)
(16,466) (3,973)
4,000 8,000
7,000 3,100
100 140
3,421 5,900
6,963 3,144
20 20
579 2,100

37 (44)

80 120
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9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(a) Trade finance balance as at 30 June 2011 863/00(2010: $3,144,000) includes interest payable aintém date of
$81,000 (2010: $55,000), therefore the group haecxreeeded the facility limit.

Trade Finance has a limit facility of $7m and pd®s credit on international counter season stackdtween 120 and 180 days.
The average interest rate on the loan facility. %6

Non-cash financing and investing activities
During the year the consolidated entity and thepiaentity did not acquire any plant and equipninivay of finance leases.

CONSOLIDATED

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
10. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CURRENT)

Trade receivables 34 1,227
Provision for impairment of trade receivables @ - (26)
34 1,201
Sundry debtors 249 163
283 1,364

(@) Allowance for impairment loss for continuing operatons

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing andyemerally on 30 day terms except for some who aré®90 day terms. A
provision for impairment loss is recognised wheer¢his objective evidence that an individual treeigeivable is impaired. No
impairment loss has been recognised for 2011 dtlesteale of wholesale operation Beanie Kids (2818.000).

During the year the trade debtors amounting to &2 (2010: $26,000) were considered fully impaired aritten directly to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. The amount fasiheluded in the administration expenses item.

Movements in the provision for impairment loss waseollows:

Opening balance 26 100
Amounts charged/(written back) during the year 2 18
Provision released (28) (92)
Closing balance - 26

As at reporting date, the ageing analysis of tradeivables is as follows:

Total 0-30 31-60 31-60 61-90 61-90 +91 +91
days days days days days days days
PDNI* PDNI* PDNI* CI*
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2011 Consolidated 34 34 - - - - - -
2010 Consolidated 1,227 540 - 322 - 197 142 26

* Past due not impaired (‘PDNI’)
Considered impaired (‘CI’)

Receivables past due but not considered impairedilaf2010: $661,000).
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11. INVENTORIES (CURRENT)

Finished goods - at net realisable value

12. OTHER ASSETS (CURRENT)

Prepayments
Deposits

13. INVESTMENT IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Skansen Pty Limited

BK World Online Pty Limited (before 1.10.09)
A.C.N. 000 950 649 Pty Limited

Dodo Holdings Pty Limited

Skansen Giftware (UK) Limited

Skansen KCG Pty Limited

Baby on a Budget Pty Ltd

Skansen KCG Pty Limited consists of the following bsinesses and
subsidiaries:

Kids Central / Mothercare /Early Learning Centreibess
BK World Online Pty Limited
Early Learning Centre Limited
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CONSOLIDATED

2011 2010
$000 $000

21,297 7,884

21,297 7,884

405 44

24 -

429 44

Country of
incorporation

Australia
Austieal
Australia
Australia
UK
Australia
Australia

Australia
Australia
NZ

Percentage of equity
interest held by the
consolidated entity

2011
%
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100
100
100

2010
%

100
100
100
100
100

73
N/A

73
100
73
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (NON-CURRENT)

Plant and equipment
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

Total carrying value

Assets

Reconciliations of the carrying amount of fixed asse the beginning and end of
the financial year.

Plant and equipment
Carrying amount at beginning

Additions
Acquisitions through business combinations 32
Disposals through business sale 33
Disposals
Depreciation 6

15. NON-CURRENT ASSETS - INTANGIBLES
Patents and trademarks — at cost

Less: impairment

Customer database - at cost

Less: impairment

Goodwill on acquisition — at cost 32

Less: impairment

Licence and development rights - at cost
Less: accumulated amortisation

Less impairment of Kids Central intangible asset

Total intangibles
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CONSOLIDATED

2011 2010

$'000 $'000
13,870 7,953
(2,274) (1,924)
11,596 6,029
6,029 521
6,423 2,671
3,564 3,865
(164) -
(1,982) (77)
(2,274) (951)
11,596 6,029
- 5
- 5
395 -
395 -
6,253 3,607
6,253 3,607
3,050 3,050
(268) (116)
(693) -
2,089 2,934
8,737 6,546
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15. NON-CURRENT ASSETS — INTANGIBLES (continued)

Recanciliations of he written davn valuesatthe begnning ard erd of the curent and prevous financialyea are set out dew:

Patent & Goodwill on Licence & Customer
trademarks acquisition development rights Database Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Consolidated
Balance at 1 July 2009 - - - - -
Additions through business
combinations (note 32) 5 3,607 2,775 - 6,387
Additions - - 275 - 275
Amortisation expense - - (116) - (116)
Balance at 30 June 2010 5 3,607 2,934 - 6,546
Patent & Goodwill on Licence & Customer
trademarks acquisition development rights  database Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Consolidated
Balance at 1 July 2010 5 3,607 2,934 - 6,546
Additions through business
combinations (note 32) (5) 2,646 - 395 3,041
Impairment of assets - - (693) - (698)
Amortisation expense - - (153) - (153)
Balance at 30 June 2011 - 6,253 2,089 395 8,737

Goodwill is allocated to the following cash-genargtunit (CGU):

Consolidated

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Mothercare 6,253 3,607

Management has assessed the Mothercare CGU astaheagment, inclusive of baby goods and baby petsd
Impairment of cash generating units including goodwl and indefinite life assets
Impairment Disclosures

The impairment of licence and development rightdus to the write off of the Kids Central intangibThis intangible relates to
the Kids central format stores which are curreh#ling converted to the Mothercare Store format.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generatingsugitddwill has been determined by a value in ukeilzdion using a
discounted cash flow model, based on a 3 year giofeperiod approved by management and extrambfatea further 2 years
using a steady growth rate, together with a terhiake.

The key assumptions used in the models are thoshith the recoverable amount of an asset is nevstitve.

The following key assumptions were used in thedalisted cash flow model for the company;

(@) 21% pre tax discount rate

(b) 3% per annum projected growth rate

The discount rate of 21% pre tax reflects managémestimate of the time value of money and thégstweighted average cost
of capital, the risk free rate and the volatilifytioe share price relative to market movements.

Management believes the projected 3% long term tiroate is reasonable and justified given the panmumber of store
expansions and general inflation.

There were no other key assumptions.
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15. NON-CURRENT ASSETS — INTANGIBLES (continued)

Sensitivity
As discussed above, the directors have made judgsraad estimates in respect of impairment testfrgpodwill. Should these
judgements and estimates not occur the resultiogwitl may vary in the carrying amount. The sendigs are as follows:

(i) Revenue would need to decrease by more than 1%diimdvtare before goodwill needs to be impairedh wit other
assumptions remaining constant.

(i)  If the discount rate were to increase by more @farthe goodwill would need to be impaired by $208,With all other
assumptions remaining constant.

Management believes that other reasonable changdks key assumptions on which the recoverable atafithe entity’s
goodwill is based would not cause the entity’syiag amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

If there are any negative changes in the key assoingoon which the recoverable amount of goodwibased, this would result in
a further impairment of goodwill.

Amortisation of Intangibles has been recogniseceumepreciation and Amortisation expenses on the8tent of
Comprehensive Income .

CONSOLIDATED

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CURRENT)
Trade payables 14,408 8,233
Other payables 1,307 398
15,715 8,631
Amounts payable in foreign currencies not effedyiveedged:
GB Pounds 5,105 2,181
US Dollars 17 707
17. BORROWINGS
Shareholders loans 3,500 2,354
ANZ bank loan* 1,013 -
4,513 2,354

During the year Mothercare Australia Limited acqdithe remaining 27% in Skansen KCG, in exchangthéorepayment of the
convertible note of $2.5million and the issue & illion shares.

The current shareholder loan comprises of two sieom loans by Mothercare UK $2m, and Myer familySn, which were
provided in advance of the rights issue which imitkd in note 34. These two loans will be capsidi as part of the rights issue.

* The ANZ bank loan is a long term loan with monthépayments of $12,500. Refer to going concern (d¢ge 2) in relation to
short term classification of ANZ loan.
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Notes CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
18. PROVISIONS
Current
Employee benefits (a) 887 641
Gift vouchers/laybys (b) 929 -
Earn-out (Note 32) 525 -
Customer loyalty points (d) 273 -
Provision for fixed asset disposal (e) 150 -
Landlord contribution (c) 120 63
2,884 704
Non-Current
Provision for make-good (leases) (f) 80 -
Employee benefits (a) 434 280
Landlord contribution (c) 645 303
1,159 583

(a) The provision for employee benefits represents ahieave and long service leave entitlements. Tddeutation of the
present value of future cash flows in respect hglservice leave is based on historical data.

(b) Sales on layby product are only recognised afte fayby instalment.

(c) Landlord contribution relates to lease incentivefedred over the period of each lease.
(d) Loyalty points accrued on the Mothercare and Haglgrning Centre loyalty programme.
(e) Provision for fixed asset disposal.

()] Provision for store make good costs.

Movement in provision

Movements in landlord provision during the finahgiear:

Gift Vouchers /Laybys Landlord Contribution

2011 2010 2011 2010

$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount at the start of the year i} i} 366 _
Contributions received - - 507 366
Issued in the year 1,077 - - -
Amount ertte_n back to Statement of (148) i (108) i
Comprehensive Income
Carrying amount at the end of year 929 - 765 366
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18. PROVISIONS (continued)

Carrying amount at the start of the year
Issued in the year

Amount written back to Statement of
Comprehensive Income

Carrying amount at the end of year

Carrying amount at the start of the year

Recognised in the year

Carrying amount at the end of year

Earn Out Customer Loyalty
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
525 - 838 -
- - (565) -
525 - 273 -

Provision for Fixed Assets

Make Good Provision

Disposal
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
150 - 80 )
150 - 80 -

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CURRENT)

Derivative financial instruments - liability

Derivative financial instruments - assets

CONSOLIDATED

2011 2010
$000 $000

(184) -

- 186

(184) 186

The derivative financial instruments representifpreexchange contracts not effectively hedged etéjporting date and are
reported through the Statement of Comprehensivareat fair value.

20. ISSUED CAPITAL

(a) ISSUED AND FULLY PAID
212,920,556 ordinary shares fully paid
(2010: 119,690,390)
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20. ISSUED CAPITAL (continued)
(b) MOVEMENT IN SHARES ON ISSUE
CONSOLIDATED

No. 2011
$'000

Balance at the beginning of the period 119,690,390 31,001
Shares issued in relation to part consideratioBatifies Galore acquisition 16,666,666 5,000
Shares issued to Mothercare Finance Limited (UK) 3,620,000 12,200
Shares issued in relation to acquisition of renrmajri7% of Skansen KCG Pty
Limited 7,500,000 2,100
Shares issued on exercise of option to Mothercan@nkEe Ltd (UK) 5,443,500 1,524
Shares issued in relation to acquisition of Babyadudget 3,333,334 1,000
Convertible notes issued to Myer Family Company HadiLimited 16,666,666 5,000
Balance as at the end of the period 212,920,556 57,825

(c) NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES
Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve is usedetmrd exchange differences arising from the tadios of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries.

Convertible note reserve
The convertible note reserve has been clearedglthinfinancial year following settlement of thesianding convertible note
loan and subsequent release of the equity porfitimad loan.

Equity reserve
Movement in the equity reserve has resulted dubeclimination of non-controlling interest on thequisition of the remaining
interest in Skansen KCG Pty Ltd.

(d) TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Ordinary Shares

Ordinary shares have the right to receive dividemlsleclared and, in the event of winding up the iz, to participate in the
proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets ipgatmn to the number of and amounts paid up oneshiaeld.

Ordinary shares entitle their holder to one voithee in person or by proxy, at a meeting of the @any.
The ordinary Shares have no par value and there lisnited amount of authorised capital.
(e) SHARE OPTIONS

During the year, nil options were issued (2010 nil

21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprisceivables, payables, trade finance, cash amtiginm deposits and forward
foreign exchange contracts (derivative financiatioments). These activities expose the Group vargety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign currency risk, irget rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Directors manage the different types of rigksvhich it is exposed by considering risk and maniitg levels of exposure to
interest rate and foreign exchange risk and bydoewvare of market forecasts for interest rate amdign exchange. Ageing
analyses and monitoring of specific credit allowemeare undertaken to manage credit risk. Liquiddl is monitored through
general business budgets and forecasts.

Risk management is carried out by senior financegiees (‘finance’) under policies approved by tBeard of Directors
(‘Board’). These policies include identification aadalysis of the risk exposure of the Group and@piate procedures, controls
and risk limits. Finance identifies, evaluates &edges financial risks within the Group’s operatimits. Finance reports to the
Board on a monthly basis.
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (conti nued)

The Group holds the following financial instruments

Consolidated Entity Fixed interest rate  Floating interest rate Non interest bearing Total

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents - 4,155 3,064 651 - - 3,064 4,806
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 186 - 186
Trade debtors - - - - 283 1,227 283 1,227
Financial Assets - 4,155 3,064 651 283 1,413 3,347 6,219
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 3,500 - 1,013 2,354 - - 4,513 2,354
Derivative financial instruments - - - - 184 - 184 -
;rtae‘jgsft')“ance (excluding - - 6,963 3,089 - - 6,963 3,089
Trade and other payables - - - - 15,715 8,631 15,715 8,631
Financial Liabilities 3,500 - 7,976 5,443 15,899 8,631 27,375 14,074
Net Exposure (3,500) 4,155 (4,912) (4,792) (15,616) (7,218) (24,028) (7,855)
Market Risk

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to market interest ratesa®latimarily to the Group’s short term depositsdh&lorrowings and trade
finance.

Sensitivity analysis
The following sensitivity analysis is based on ititerest rate risk exposures in existence at therting date.

Management considers the below movements in iriteatss to have a material impact on the Groupgkr@st rate exposure.

If interest rates had moved, as illustrated intdige below, with all other variables held constédmgs and net assets would have
been affected as follows:

Consolidated entity

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
If interest rates were 1% higher 31 50
If interest rates were 1% lower (31) (50)
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (conti nued)

Market Risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures &xmosure arises from purchases by Skansen KCGdPty currencies other
than the unit's measurement currency. In orderrtdggt against exchange rate movements, the graspehtered into forward
foreign exchange contracts. Management has a oiskyto hedge between 50% and 100% against aat@iptransactions for the
next 6 — 12 months.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk &30afune 2011 is as follows

Note 2011 2010
Expressed in foreign currencies
Forward exchange contracts (buy foreign currenty$b '000 - 1,880
Trade payables — USD '000 16 17 707
Forward exchange contracts (buy foreign curren&/BP '000 2,138 2,097
Trade payables — GBP '000 16 5,099 2,181

The maturity, settlement amounts and the averagéraziual exchange rates of the consolidated éntitytstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts at the reporting dateasdollows:

Expressed in foreign currencies Sell Australian Dollars  Average Exchange Rates
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Buy US Dollars

Maturity:

0-3 months - 1,230 - 0.869

3-6 months - 650 - 0.851

Buy GB Pounds

Maturity:

0-3 months 2,138 1,520 0.625 0.586

3-6 months - 577 - 0.577

The carrying amount of the consolidated entity’sefgn currency denominated financial assets ananfial liabilities at the
reporting date was as follows:

Expressed in Australian dollars Asset: Liabilities

Translated at spot rates at reportina date 2011 201C 2011 201C
$00C $'00C $'000 $'00C

Consolidated

US Dollars - 5 16 829

GB Pounds - - 7,709 3,844

NZ Dollars 155 103 56 -

155 108 7,781 4,673
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (conti nued)

Market Risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)
The consolidated entity had net liabilities dencaéal in foreign currencies of $7.63m (assets $0MLESs liabilities $7.78M) as
at 30 June 2011 (2010: $4.56m (assets $0.108Middslities $4.67M)).

Sensitivity analysis
Based on this exposure, had the Australian Dollaakeeed by 10% or strengthened by 5% (2010: weakéyed0% or

strengthened by 5%) against these foreign currenith all other variables held constant, the ctidated entity's loss before tax
for the year would have been $0.848M higher or @O\ lower (2010: $0.071M lower or $0.165M highendaequity would have
been $0.848M lower or $0.364M higher (2010: $6N6ower or $0.071Mhigher).

The percentage change is the expected overallilitylaf the significant currencies, which is based management's assessment
of reasonable possible fluctuations taking intoside@ration movements over the last 6 months eaghaed the spot rate at each
reporting date. The actual foreign exchange losth®year ended 30 June 2011 was $1.63m (20181 $81).

Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the Group’s cash and casiivatgnts, deposits with banks as well as cregibsure to wholesale and
independent retail customers.

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. Creditregérs to the risk that a counterparty will defaudtits contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the consolidateditgntThe Group has a strict code of credit, inchgliobtaining agency credit
information, confirming references and setting appiate credit limits. The Group obtains guaranted®re appropriate to
mitigate credit risk. The maximum exposure to dredik at the reporting date to recognised findnassets, is the carrying
amount, net of any provisions for impairment ofdb@ssets, as disclosed in the Statement of Faldhasition and notes to the
financial statements. The Group does not hold afiateral but in many instances have personal/tiret guarantees from the
customers.

Management closely monitors the receivable balamca monthly basis and is in regular contact witbtemers to mitigate risk.

The Group trades only with recognised, creditwottiigd parties.

It is the Group policy that all customers who wishtrade on credit terms are subject to creditfieation procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoinig.bEse Group’s exposure to bad debts is not st and is detailed in note
10.

Price Risk
Price risk relates to the risk that the fair vatuefuture cash flows of a financial instrument wilictuate because of changes in
marker prices largely due to demand and supplypfador commodities.

Liquidity risk
The Group’s objective is to maintain sufficient #afle funding to meet its operational commitmeansl acquisitions that may
arise. The need for available funds is monitoreduph the preparation and maintenance of fututengotash flow forecasts.

The Group’s financial liabilities as at the repogtidate comprise of trade payables, trade finaaciéty, borrowings and foreign
currency forward contracts; and under the agreedsteforeign currency forward contracts are payatitein 12 months of the
reporting date.

The Group’s financing arrangements are shown ie Aadh the financial statements.

Remaining contractual maturities

The following tables detail the consolidated ergityemaining contractual maturity for its financialstrument liabilities. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscouagidflows of financial liabilities based on therliest date on which the
financial liabilities are required to be paid. Ttables include both interest and principal cashvdlalisclosed as remaining
contractual maturities and therefore these totalg differ from their carrying amount in the staternef financial position.
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (conti

Market Risk (continued)

Consolidated - 2011

Non-derivatives
Non-interest bearing
Trade payables

Other payables
Interest-bearing — variable
rate

Trade finance

ANZ Bank loan

Interest-bearing — fixed rate
Short term loan
Total non-derivatives

Derivatives
Forward foreign exchange
contracts net settled

Consolidated - 2010

Non-derivatives
Non-interest bearing
Trade payables

Other payables
Interest-bearing — variable
rate

Trade finance

Convertible notes

Total non-derivatives
Derivatives
Forward foreign exchange

contracts net settled

Fair values

nued)
Weighted 1 year Between Between Over 5 Remaining
average or less land?2 2and5 years contractual
interest rate years years maturities
% $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
- 14,408 14,408
- 1,307 1,307
8.00 6,963 6,963
7.62 1,013 1,013
10.00 3,500 3,500
27,191 27,191
3,421 3,421
Weighted 1 year Between Between Over 5 Remaining
average or less land?2 2and5 years contractual
interest rate years years maturities
% $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
- 8,233 8,233
- 398 398
5.02 3,144 3,144
9.85 2,500 2,500
14,275 14,275
- 5,900 5,900

The following tables detail the consolidated ergifgir values of financial instruments categoribgdhe following levels:

Level 1:
Level 2:

prices) or indirectly (derived from prices)

Level 3:
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (conti nued)

Fair value (continued)

Consolidated—2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Liabilities

Derivative financial instruments - 184 - 184

Consolidated—2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Assets

Derivative financial instruments - 186 - 186

There were no transfers between levels duringittaméial year.

Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amounts r@fnftial instruments reflect their fair value. Tharging amounts of trade
receivables and trade payables are assumed toxappte their fair values due to their short-termune. The fair value of
financial liabilities is estimated by discountiniget remaining contractual maturities at the curmaarket interest rate that is
available for similar financial instruments.

All assets and liabilities recognised in the Statetrof Financial Position, whether they are cara¢dost or at fair value, are
recognised at amounts that represents a reascaqgimeximation of fair values unless otherwise statethe applicable notes

CONSOLIDATED

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
22. ACCUMULATED LOSSES
Balance at the beginning of the financial year (20,025) (16,840)
Loss for the year attributable to members (20,292) (3,185)
Total available for appropriation (40,317) (20,025)

Dividends paid (Note 8) - -

Balance at end of the financial year
(40,317) (20,025)

23. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
(@) Operating lease expenditure commitments

Operating Leases (non-cancellable)

- not later than one year 6,449 5,350
- later than one year and not later than fivegea 16,008 12,554
- aggregate lease expenditure contracted fdreateporting date 22,457 17,904

Operating lease commitments include contracted atsdaor stores and properties. The leases haveusgscalation clauses. On
renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated.
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23. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(b) Remuneration commitments

Commitments for the payment of salaries and otieenuneration under
long term employment contracts in existence atéiperting date but not

recognised as liabilities payable:
- not later than one year

- later than one year and not later than five year

Consolidated

2011 2010
$000's $000's
250 835
250 835

Remuneration commitments include contracted amangisg from the service agreements of key managepersonnel as

disclosed in the remuneration report in the dinecteport.

24. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share

Net loss attributable to members of Mothercare Falist
Limited

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (inghods) on
issue used in the calculation of basic earningshpare

Diluted earnings per share

Net loss attributable to members of Mothercare Falist
Limited

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (inghods) on
issue used in the calculation of diluted earningsghare

25. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

2011
$000’s

(20,292)

183,046

(20,292)

183,046

2010
$'000’s

(3,184)

119,690

(3,184)

119,690

2011

2010

EPS (Cents) EPS (Cents)

(11.10)

(2.66)

(2.66)

(2.66)

The consolidated entity has given bank guarantees 80 June 2011 of $1,883,721 (2010: $1,626,@6@rious landlords, held

over the life of the lease term.
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26. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Details of directors and key management personnel

(i) Directors
The following personnel were directors of MotheecAustralia Limited during the financial year:

G Elkington Executive Chairman — Resigned 30 Noverab&0

B Dennison Managing Director

G Choo Executive Director / Chief Financial OffieceResigned 30 November 2010

R Bartlett Non-executive Director

M. Lewis Executive Director - Appointed 30 SeptanB010

R.Gavshon Non-executive Chairman - Appointed 1 Béez 2010

J Cull Non-executive Director - Appointed 30 Septem2010

D Shelmerdine Non-executive Director — Appoint@dN\&vember 2010

C Moynihan Non-executive Director — Appointed 30vimber 2010
(ii) Other key management personnel

| Gordon Company Secretary — Resigned 29 June 2011

R.De Lorenzo

Key management compensation

Company Secretary/Chief Financial OfficAppointed 1 December 2010

Detailed remuneration disclosures are providedeictiSns A — E of the Remuneration Report on paged Bef the directors

report.
CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
$000's $000's
Short-term employee benefits 1.111.843 898503
Cash bonus 50,000 -
Termination 392,500 -
Post-employment benefits 89,635 66,690
Non-monetary benefits 34,686 15,491
1,678,664 980,684
Shareholdings in Mothercare Australia Ltd of directors and key management personnel
30 June 2011
Balance at Granted as Options Net change Balance at
1 July 2010 remuneration exercised other 30 June
2011
Directors
G Elkington 8,492,346 - - (7,433,346) 1,059,000
B Dennison 12,741,374 - - (962,000) 11,779,374
G Choo 82,567 - - (82,567) -
M.Lewis - - - 5,373,748 5,373,748
R. de Lorenzo - - - 20,000 20,000
30 June 2010
Balance as Granted as Options Net change Balance at
at 1 July remuneration exercised other 30 June
2009 2010
Directors
G Elkington 7,809,846 - - 682,500 8,492,344
B Dennison 13,959,154 - - (1,217,780) 12,741,374
G Choo 82,567 - - - 82,567
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27. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
$ $

Amounts received or due and receivable by the arsddf Mothercare Australia
Limited for:

— an audit or review of the financial statementthefentity and any other entity in
the consolidated entity 245,333 159,788

— other assurance services in relation to theyestiti any other entity in the
consolidated entity 13,500 31,892

258,833 191,680

28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

a) The directors of Mothercare Australia Limited dgrithe financial year were:

G Elkington (Resigned 30 November 2010)
B Dennison

G Choo (Resigned 30 November 2010)
R Bartlett

J. Cull (Appointed 30 September 2010)
M.Lewis (Appointed 30 September 2010)
R.Gavshon (Appointed 1 December 2010)
C.Moynihan (Appointed 30 November 2010)
D. Shelmerdine (Appointed 30 November 2010)

b) Interests in subsidiaries are shown in Note 13.
c) Mothercare Australia Limited is the ultimate parentity.
d) The following related party transactions occurredry the financial year, all were on normal comoiarterms:

(i) Transactions with related parties in wholly-azehgroup

1. Loans made by Mothercare Australia Limited to wiralvned entities repayable on demand $27,714,00002
$2,507,000); and
2. Loans made to Mothercare Australia Limited by wira@llvned entities repayable on demand $- (2010: £BE0.
(i) Transactions with director-related entities.

There was no transactions with director-relatedieatup to 30 June 2011 (2010: nil).

(i) Shareholder related Party loans

The shareholder loans comprises of two short teramd by Mothercare UK $2m, and Myer Family $1.5mjclv was
provided in advance of the current rights issuesehtwo loans will be capitalised as part of thhats issue.

(iv) Purchases from Shareholders

Purchases from Mothercare UK $15,612,000 (201038/79%2).
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29. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Year ended 30 June 2011

Management has determined the operating segmesei lien reports reviewed by the executive managecwntnittee for
making strategic decisions. The executive manageomnmittee comprises of the Managing Director, €Rirancial Officer and
divisional managers. The committee monitors thénass based on shop type segments and have iddrifieportable segments.
The basis of determining segments has been expaadbdde the retail segment into the businesssiins of Mothercare (Baby
goods/products) and ELC (Toys).

Operating Segments

ELC Mothercare  Giftware* Total
(Discontinued)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

REVENUE
Sales to external customers 19,135 46,522 1,339 66,996
Other income 108

67,104
Interest revenue 366
Total segment revenue 67,470
RESULT
Segment contribution/(loss) 998 (6,872) 62 (5,812)
Gain on acquisition 596
Unallocated revenue and expenses (7,168)
Trading loss (12,384)
Finance costs (595)
Depreciation & amortisation (2,453)
Significant non-recurring other costs
FX Loss (1,995)
Disposal of BG store assets due to closure (3,700
Non continuing administration costs (2,010)
Write off Kids central intangible due to conversiofihbranded (700)
stores to Mothercare format
Net loss from continuing operations before tax 21,837)
Income tax benefit 594
Net loss for the year (21,243)
Assets
Segment assets 5,456 32,081 37,537
Unallocated assets 9,087
Total assets 46,624

*The giftware segment has been included for comparacasons. As detailed per note 33 the Giftviiarginess (Beanie Kids was
disposed of during the year).
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29. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Year ended 30 June 2010

Operating Segments

ELC Mothercare Giftware* Total
(Discontinued)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

REVENUE
Sales to external customers 22088 1,176 7817 31,081
Other income 551

31,632
Interest revenue 257
Total segment revenue 31,889
RESULT
Segment contribution/(loss) (3,298 (84) 81 (3,301)
Gain on acquisition -
Unallocated revenue and expenses 579
Trading Loss (2,722)
Finance Costs (328)
Depreciation and amortisation (1,067)
Net loss from continuing operations before tax 4,1407)
Income tax benefit 65
Net loss for the year (4,052)
Assets
Segment assets 8,140 7,023 2,669 17,832
Unallocated assets 9,461
Total assets 27,293

* The Giftware segment has been included for coatpar reasons, as detailed per note 33 the Giftvasiness (Beanie Kids)
was disposed of during the year. FY10 MC contribuficcludes two stores MC Doncaster and MC Chadstdwme.Kids Central
stores are reported under the ELC segment in FifaDare now reported under Mothercare in FY11 dueonhversion to the
Mothercare store format.

The executive management committee monitors segmeribrmance based on store contribution. This somea excludes
depreciation and amortisation, unallocated headeoffosts and non-recurring expenditure such asiotgring transaction costs.
The basis of measuring segment profit or loss bastmanged from the last annual financial statement

All operations are carried out in Australia and Nésaland and no individual customer provides graagn 10% of total revenue.
30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

Mothercare Australia and its subsidiaries objestivthen managing capital are to safeguard theiityhd continue as a going
concern, so that they can continue to provide nstio shareholders, benefits to other stakeholaietlsto maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capitakrétare no externally imposed capital requirements.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital struefuhe Group may adjust the amount of dividendd paishareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consisteittiyothers in the industry, Mothercare Australianitors capital on the basis of
the gearing ratio.

The consolidated entity and parent entity wouldkltm raise capital when an opportunity to invesaibusiness or company was
seen as value adding relative to the current pametity's share price at the time of the investmdiie consolidated entity and
parent entity are actively pursuing additional istweents in the short to medium term as it contirtoesmtegrate and grow its

existing businesses in order to maximise synergies.
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31. PARENT ENTITY INFORMATION

2011 2010

$'000 $'000
Information relating to Mothercare Australia Ltd:
Current assets 62 6,486
Total assets 39,981 13,144
Current liabilities - (880)
Total liabilities - (892)
Issued capital (57,825)| (31,001)
Retained earnings 17,349 18,749
Total shareholders’ equity 39,981 | (12,252)
Loss of the parent entity (495) (2,106)
Total comprehensive income of the parent entity (495) (2,106)
Details of any guarantees entered into by the panmtity in relation to the debts of its subsidiari

. Fixed and floating charge over parent’s assetsuadlled capital for borrowings from ANZ fo 8,424 -

the consolidated group.

. Total facilities — please refer to note 9 11,100 11,240
Details of any contingent liabilities of the paremitity - -
Details of any contractual commitments by the poesrity for the acquisition of property, plant or - -
equipment

32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

During the year, on 1 October 2010, Mothercare wlist Limited acquired 100% of the issued capitMgestern Australian
mother and baby chain called "Baby on a Budget". dditeon, effective 21 September 2010, Mothercarestfalia Limited
acquired selected business assets and liabilifistkeoNew South Wales and Queensland based motfiebaby chain called
"Babies Galore". Both these acquisitions have pregabshe rollout of the Mothercare national footprirhe assets and liabilities
acquired through both acquisitions are as follows:

Baby on a Budget — 100% issued capital acquired dhOctober 2010

Purchase consideration: $'000

Cash 1,000
3,333,334 ordinary shares issued by Mothercaréralies Limited 1,000
Contingent consideration 525
Total purchase consideration 2,525

The assets and liabilities of the combined busiaésir value are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 60
Trade receivables 27
Inventories 3,041
Other assets 3
Property, plant and equipment 254
Deferred tax assets 44
Trade creditors and other payables (1,841)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (1,101)
Other creditors and accruals (551)
Employee entitlements (59)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities acquired (123)
Goodwill on acquisition 2,648

2,525
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

The goodwill is attributable to the Baby on a Budgdsting customer network. Synergies are expectdettachieved once the
highly successful model of Mothercare's Parentingtk@s across Western Australia have been rolléd\mne of the goodwill
recognised is expected to be deductible for tap@ses.

Acquisition related costs of $162,000 are inclugfethe administration expenses line per the Stat¢wieComprehensive Income.

Revenue and profit contribution

From the date of acquisition, Baby on a Budget ledhitas contributed $8.4m to revenue and a los8.@83M to the result of
the group. If the acquisition had occurred on ¥ 20110, the revenue would have been $11.2m anbseafter tax would have
been $0.177M.

Contingent consideration

The contingent consideration is the fair valuehef €xpected future earn-out to the vendors of Baby Budget. The earn-out is a
mixture of cash and shares in Mothercare Austidhiaited, if certain EBITDA figures are met. The congent consideration is
calculated by reference to the probability of weégghfuture expected earnings of the Baby on a Bualgghess.

Due to the restructuring of the Baby on a Budgetest@and conversion to the Mothercare Brand formanaitvity review of the
contingent consideration has not been included.

Babies Galore - Selected assets and liabilities effive 21 September 2010

Purchase Consideration: $'000

Cash 3,800
16,666,666 ordinary shares issued by Mothercarg¢rdlissLimited 5,000
Total purchase consideration 8,800

The assets and liabilities of the combined busiaésair value are as follows:

Inventories 6,533
Property, plant and equipment 3,310
Customer database 395
Deferred tax assets 208
Customer liabilities (686)
Employee entitlements (364)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities acquired 9,396
Gain on acquisition (596)

8,800

The gain on acquisition of $2.1M which was recogdisn the half year Financial Statements for 31dbdger 2010 has been
revised and finalised at $0.596M . The revisiomniselation to an adjustment to the stock assefsiieed which have been re-
valued in line with fair value accounting ($1.2Mjdarecognition of customer laybys ($0.328M). The iBalGalore acquisition
was made to accelerate the roll-out of the Mothreread ELC brands to a national footprint in Australhe gain on acquisition
resulted as the Babies Galore business performaasédging significantly impacted by increased pgaimmpetition and lack of
available financing. The Directors of Mothercareskalia Limited saw the opportunity of the positimeargin impact of

introducing the higher margin Mothercare producteothe Babies Galore stores have been rebrandesir@irianding has now
been completed with stores now converted to thehktotre format.

Acquisition related costs of $503,012 are inclugfethe administration expenses line per the Stat¢wieComprehensive Income.
Revenue and profit contribution

From the date of acquisition, Babies Galore hasritnried $14.9M to revenue and a net loss of $8Nhéonet loss of the group.
The contribution of Babies Galore to the revenuelard of the consolidated entity if acquisition fwamturred on 1 July 2010 has

not been disclosed as Babies Galore has been tesedisince acquisition and it is impracticablelédermine contribution since 1
July 2010.
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

2010
On 1 October 2009, Mothercare Australia througloatrolled entity, Skansen KCG Pty Ltd acquired thuwsibess assets and
liabilities of the Kids Central / Early Learning CemtThe assets and liabilities from the acquisitiom as follows:

Purchase consideration: $'000

Issued convertible notes 2,500
Ordinary shares issued by Skansen KCG 1,649
Contingent consideration 123
Total purchase consideration 4,272

The assets and liabilities of the combined busiaésair value are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 438
Trade receivables 193
Inventories 3,629
Other current assets 341
Property, plant and equipment 3,865
Intangibles — licences and development right 2,780
Deferred tax assets 185
Trade creditors and other payables (6,319)
Convertible notes (1,100)
Trade finance (2,370)
Employee entitlements (537)
Related party payables (440)
Net identifiable assets acquired 665
Add goodwill 3,607

4,272

Mothercare through a wholly owned subsidiary, SkanBty Ltd, acquired 73% of Skansen KCG Pty Ltd #wednon-controlling
interest is 27%. This is based on Skansen Pty Winirgg 4.5 million shares out of a total of 6.15lmit shares.

The net cash inflow from the acquired business$@a438M.

The goodwill is attributable to the Kids Central addthercare / Early Learning Centre (ELC) existingwagk and systems as
well as the expected growth from the further deprlent of the businesses. Synergies are expectagl dchieved once the highly
successful model of Mothercare’s Parenting Centoessa Australia has been rolled out. None of thedgdll recognised is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Acquisition-related costs of $0.676M are includedhie administration expenses in the statementmpeehensive income.

Contingent consideration

The contingent consideration of $0.123M is the Yailue of the expected future earn-out payable kceNlewis. Mr. Lewis will
receive an earn-out up to a maximum of $0.351M haras in Skansen KCG, if certain performance catenie met. The
contingent consideration is calculated by referetacéhe probability of weighted future expectednéags of the Kids Central
business.

Given the performance of this financial year, teefgrmance criteria was not met. The contingensim®eration was settled within
equity during the year as shown in the Statemefthainges in Equity.

Revenue and profit contribution

The acquiree contributed revenues of $23.5M witiet@loss of $3.4M to the Group for the period frbr®ctober 2009 to 30 June
2010. The contribution of the acquiree to the rexeeand profit or loss of the consolidated entitthd acquisition had occurred on
1 July 2009 has not been disclosed as the acquaedeen restructured since acquisition and igacticable to determine its
contribution since 1 July 2009.
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33. DISCOUNTINUED OPERATIONS

On 31 August 2010, Mothercare Australia Limited @ammced the sale of Skansen KCG Giftware busines86@anie Kids) to Zoo
SkyMedia PTY Ltd. As a result of Mothercare Ausadlimited being clearly focused on the roll outitsf Mothercare and ELC
retail concepts. The Giftware business no longenéal part of Mothercare Australia’s core busin&gsce October 2009 when
Mothercare Australia acquired a controlling interies Kids Central, Mothercare Australia emphasis basn establishing the
platform to take Mothercare in Australia to a natibfootprint. The capital previously employed Inistdivision will be utilised to

accelerate the national footprint.

Financial information relating to Skansen KCG Giftavdusiness from 1 July 2010 to 31 August 2010e(dé&disposal), and for
the year ended 30 June 2010 is set out below :

Financial Performance 1 July 2010 to 31

August 2010 30 June 2010

$'000 $'000

Revenue 1,339 7,817
COGS and overheads (1,259) (7.541)
Depreciation and amortisation (27) (172)
Interest income - 5
Net profit attributable to
discontinued operations 53 109
Loss on sale of business (18) -

Income tax expense - -
Loss on sale of division after

income tax (18) -
Profit from discontinued operation 35 109

Information relating to the financial position dfet Giftware business at disposal date (31 Augu&bp@nd at the end of the
previous annual reporting period are as set owviel

From annual
financial
Disposal date statements 30 June
31 August 2010 2010
$'000 $'000
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 170 317
Trade debtors 1,713 1,109
Inventories 691 997
Other assets 11 79
Cash and cash equivalents - 165
Total assets 2,585 2,667
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 414 521
Provision for employee
entitlements 153 151
Total liabilities 567 672
Net assets 2,018 1,995
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33. DISCOUNTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)
Cash flow information for the 2 months ended 31 A1d@010 and the year ended 30 June 2010 are ewsoll

1 July 2010 to 31 Year ended 30 June

August 2010 2010
$000 $'000

Net cash inflow from operating activities 67 38
Net cash inflow from sale of business 2,000 -
Net increase in cash generated by the giftwaresidivi 2,067 38
Detail of the sale of the BK brand and wholesale dision are
as follows:
Consideration received 2,000
Carrying amount of net assets sold 2,018
Loss on sale before income tax (18)
Income tax expense -
Loss on sale after income tax (18)

34. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE

Mothercare Australia announced in conjunction wiltle recent release of the Appendix 4E, a rightseissonsisting of one
Mandatorily Converting Note for every five sharefdhé is priced at $0.18 per security yieldingergst of 11.45% per annum (in
respect of interest payments that are not franke@p6 per annum (in respect of interest paymemsudly franked from available
profits). The New Mandatorily Converting Notes issuzy the Company will be secured by a second ranfieg and floating
charge over all of the Company’s assets.

The proceeds of the offer will be used to:
. enable the Company to take advantage of increasesllstation opportunities;

. expand the Company’s marketing investment in crgadflothercare's brand awareness; and
. provide additional working capital for the Company.

The offer has closed and raised $7.6M, before tisésof the offer. This comprised up to $4.6M @wrsubscription monies with
the balance covered by the underwriters. Part@ptioceeds generated will be applied to capitgitians to Mothercare plc and
Myer Family Company.

Apart from the matters above, no other mattersraumstances have arisen since the end of yeathvgtigmificantly affected the
operations of the consolidated entity, the resfithose operations or the state of affairs ofdbwesolidated entity.
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35. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE

a) Details of operations disposed

The remaining property in Lisarow was sold and wgly settled in full in early May 2010 with net @ceeds of $1.9M and for a
profit of $0.025M. It was included in the ‘Asselassified as Held for Sale in June 2009 with anampent charge of $0.198M

recognised to align the carrying value of the ags#t its fair value less cost to sell. The impadmh charge was included on the
face of the Statement of Comprehensive Income i®200

The major classes of assets and liabilities as at:

2011 2010
$000 $'000
Assets
Land & buildings - -
Other assets - 55
Cash and cash equivalents - 1
Assets classified as held for sale - 56
Liabilities
Trade and other payables - 3
Deferred tax liabilities - -
Liabilities directly associated with assets cldsdifas held for resale - 3
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DIRECTORS DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

In the directors' opinion:

the attached financial statements and notes themtply with the Corporations Act 2001, the AccongtiStandards, the
Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatofegsimnal reporting requirements;

the attached financial statements and notes theoetiply with International Financial Reporting Stards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board as destiib@ote 2 to the financial statements;

the attached financial statements and notes thgietoa true and fair view of the consolidated tgtstifinancial position as at
30 June 2011 and of its performance for the firdn@ar ended on that date;

there are reasonable grounds to believe that thgpaoy will be able to pay its debts as and when tiecome due and
payable; and

The directors have been given the declarationsnexdjby section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directoegle pursuant to section 295(5) of the Corporattamt2001.

On behalf of the directors

R

Robert Gavshon
Non-Executive Chairman

30 September 2011
Sydney
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Chartered Accountants
& Business Advisers

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MOTHERCARE AUSTRALIA LIMITED

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Mothercare Australia Limited, which comprises the statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2011, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies,
other explanatory information, and the directors’ declaration of Mothercare Australia Limited (the company) and the
consolidated entity. The consolidated entity comprises the company and the entities it controlled at the year’s end or
from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 2(c), the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting
Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial statements comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Tel: 61 2 9251 4100 | Fax: 61 2 9240 9821 | www.pkf.com.au

PKF | ABN 83 236 985 726

Level 10, 1 Margaret Street | Sydney | New South Wales 2000 | Australia
DX 10173 | Sydney Stock Exchange | New South Wales

The PKF East Coast Practice is a member of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent member firms. The PKF East Coast Practice is also a member of the
PKF Australia Limited national network of legally independent firms each trading as PKF. PKF East Coast Practice has offices in NSW, Victoria and Brisbane. PKF East Coast
Practice does not accept responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
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Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.

Opinion
In our opinion:

@) the financial report of Mothercare Australia Limited and the consolidated entity is in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:

0] giving a true and fair view of the company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June
2011 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
(b) the consolidated financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards
as disclosed in Note 2(d).
Report on the Remuneration Report
We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 8 to 11 of the directors’ report for the year ended 30
June 2011. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration
Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Mothercare Australia Limited for the year ended 30 June 2011, complies
with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

John Bresolin
Partner

30 September 2011
Sydney
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MOTHERCARE AUSTRALIA LIMITED & CONTROLLED ENTITIES

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Additional information required by the Australiato8k Exchange Limited not shown elsewhere in tafort is as follows:

The information is current as at 15 September 2011.
1. Substantial shareholders

Shareholder

MOTHERCARE FINANCE LIMITED

J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED
M F CUSTODIANS LTD

CLIME INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LTD

2. Securities subject to voluntary escrow:
Nil
1. Statement of shareholdings

Shareholder

MOTHERCARE FINANCE LIMITED

J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED

M F CUSTODIANS LTD

CLIME INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LTD

MR BRENT DENNISON

ALLEGRO PRIVATE EQUITY FUND 1 BV

PERPETUAL TRUSTEES CONSOLIDATED LIMITED <CLIME ASSE
MANAGEMENT A/C>

J EDWARDS INVESTMENTS PTY LTD <J EDWARDS INVEST SEBR A/C>

JESSFIELD LIMITED

M F CUSTODIANS LTD

AUSTRALIAN EXECUTOR TRUSTEES LIMITED

AUSTRALIAN EXECUTOR TRUSTEES LIMITED

MR MORGAN EVAN WILLIAMS

MR GIUSEPPE PALUMBO

EQUIPMENT COMPANY OF AUSTRALIA PTY LIMITED

MR BRENT RONALD DENNISON

UBS WEALTH MANAGEMENT AUSTRALIA NOMINEES PTY LTD

MR KERRY PAUL GALLOWAY + MRS MERLE LORRAINE GALLOWAY

<KERRY GALLOWAY S/F A/C>
PICTON COVE PTY LTD

MR DAVID JOHN PHIPPARD + MRS ELAINE MARIE PHIPPARBPHIPPARD

SUPER FUND A/C>

Proportion held by 20 largest holders

Number of shareholders holding less than a marketzdrcel

(<2,000)

Shareholder spread ordinary shares
1 - 1,000

1,001 - 5,000

5,001 - 10,000

10,001 - 100,000

100,001 - Over

4. Voting rights
Ordinary shares - carry one vote per shareoutthestriction.
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Shares

49,063,500
17,759,275
16,666,666
11,402,024

20 largest
shareholders
ordinary shares

No. of shares
49,063,500
17,759,275
16,666,666
11,402,024
9,506,770
7,750,001

7,582,616

7,000,000
5,373,748
5,000,000
4,458,333
4,458,333
3,953,026
3,952,922
2,490,58
2,272,604
2130,140

2,130,050
1,900,269
1,870,900

166,721,685

78.3%

69

No. of holders
38

188

125

329

100

780

%

23.04
8.34
7.83
5.36

23.04
8.34
7.83
5.36
4.46
3.64

3.56

3.29
2.52
2.35
2.09
2.09
1.86
1.86
1.17

1.07
1.00

1.00
0.89
0.88
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MOTHERCARE AUSTRALIA LIMITED & CONTROLLED ENTITIES

DIRECTORY

DIRECTORS

Robert Gavshon
Non-Executive Chairman

Brent Dennison
Managing Director

Chester Moynihan
Non-Executive Director

David Shelmerdine
Non-Executive Director

Jerry Cull
Non-Executive Director

Mike Lewis
Non-Executive Director

Ross Bartlett
Non-Executive Director

Robert de Lorenzo
Company Secretary/Chief Financial Officer

HEAD OFFICE

Mothercare Australia Limited (ACN 060 199 082)
Level 1

Building 2A/220

The Entertainment Quarter

122 Lang Road

Moore Park NSW 2021

Telephone 02 9332 9900
Facsimile 02 9358 5799

REGISTERED OFFICE

Mothercare Australia Limited
Level 1

Building 2A/220

The Entertainment Quarter
122 Lang Road

Moore Park NSW 2021

Telephone 02 9332 9900
Facsimile 02 9358 5799

SHARE REGISTRY

Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited
Level 3

60 Carrington Street

SYDNEY NSW 2000

Telephone 02 8234 5000
Facsimile 02 8234 5050
www.computershare.com
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DIRECTORY

AUDITORS

PKF

Chartered Accountants & Business Advisers
Level 10

1 Margaret Street

SYDNEY NSW 2000

MOTHERCARE AUSTRALIA COMPANIES

Skansen KCG P/L (ACN 134 497 420)
Level 1, Building 220/2A

The Entertainment Quarter

122 Lang Road

Moore Park NSW 2021

Telephone 02 9332 9900
Facsimile 02 9358 5799
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